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Tab #1

Contact Information



TAB 1: CONTACT INFORMATION

Main Applicant

Main Applicant Contact

Main Applicant CEO

City of Dayton
101 West Third Street
Dayton, Ohio 45402

Population: 141,527
County: Montgomery County

Main Phone Number: 937 333-3333
cityhall@daytonohio.qgov

Cheryl J. Garrett

Finance Director

City of Dayton

101 West Third Street

Dayton, Ohio 45402
937-333-3578

937-333-2222 (fax)
cheryl.qgarrett@daytonohio.gov

Timothy H. Riordan

City Manager

101 West Third Street
Dayton, OH 45402

937 333-3600

937 333-4298 (fax)
Tim.riordan@daytonohio.gov
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Collaborative Partner:

Collaborative Partner
Miami Valley Communications Council
1195 East Alex-Bell Road
Centerville, Ohio 45459

Population: 151,951
County: Greene, Montgomery, Warren

Main phone number (937) 438-8887
Wwww.mvcc.net

Collaborative Partner CEO
John Weithofer
Executive Director
1195 East Alex-Bell Road
Centerville, Ohio 45459
937-424-1660
937-438-8569 (fax)
weithofer@mvcc.net

Collaborative Partner Member Cities

City of Centerville

Gregory B. Horn

City Manager

100 West Spring Valley Road
Centerville, Ohio 45458
937-433-7151
937-433-8221 (fax)
ghorn@ci.centerville.oh.us
Population: 23,999
Greene County
Montgomery County

City of Germantown
Anna Sizemore

City Manager

75 North Walnut Street
Germantown, Ohio 45327
937-855-7255
937-855-3215 (fax)
asizemore@donet.com
Population: 5,547
Montgomery County
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City of Kettering

Mark Schwieterman
City Manager

3600 Shroyer Road
Kettering, Ohio 45429
937-296-2416
937-296-2550 (fax)
mark.schwieterman@ketteringoh.org
Population: 56,163
Greene County
Montgomery County

City of Miamisburg

Keith Johnson

City Manager

10 North First Street

Miamisburg, Ohio 45342
937-847-6456

937-866-0891 (fax)
keith.johnson@cityofmiamisburg.org
Population: 20,181

Montgomery County

City of Moraine

David Hicks

City Manager

4200 Dryden Road
Moraine, Ohio 45439
937-535-1000
937-535-1275 (fax)
dhicks@moraineoh.org
Population: 6,307
Montgomery County

City of Oakwood

Norbert Klopsch

City Manager

30 Park Avenue

Dayton, Ohio 45419
937-298-0600
937-297-2940 (fax)
Klopsch@oakwood.oh.us
Population: 9,202
Montgomery County
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City of Springboro
Christine Thompson

City Manager

320 West Central Avenue
Springboro, Ohio 45066
937-748-4343
937-748-0815 (fax)
chris@cityofspringboro.com
Population: 17,409
Montgomery County
Warren County

City of West Carrollton

Brad Townsend

City Manager

300 East Central Avenue

West Carrollton, Ohio 45449
937-859-5183

937-859-3366 (fax)
brad.townsend@westcarrollton.org

Population: 13,143
Montgomery County
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Nature of Partnership

The City of Dayton is a southwestern Ohio charter city founded in 1796 and
incorporated in 1805. Dayton is the county seat and largest city in Montgomery County
with a 2010 census population of 141,527 residents. The City of Dayton will serve as
the lead agency partnering with the Miami Valley Communications Council (MVCC).

MVCC is a municipal communications and technology organization representing the
eight member cities of Centerville, Germantown, Kettering, Miamisburg, Moraine,
Oakwood, Springboro and West Carrollton. The council also has affiliate agreements
with 13 other Miami Valley cities. MVCC was formed in 1975 as a council of
governments to monitor, regulate, and administer common cable television franchise
agreements, manage the operations of the council’s cable access television channels,
and develop and implement intergovernmental projects designed to strengthen
communications between member cities and their citizens.

How Main Applicant and Partner Plan to Work Together on the Project

Dayton will take the lead to coordinate the project plan activities with support from
MVCC. The Dayton City Manager, MVCC’s Executive Director and the City Managers
of each of MVCC’s member cities will provide oversight and leadership to the project.
The chief executives will appoint staff with income tax knowledge to work on an Income
Tax Task Force. The Task Force will work with Dayton, MVCC, staff from Miami Valley
communities and consultants to review current income tax ordinances, obtain input from
the business community, research uniformity options, estimate the effect on revenues
and develop a proposed uniform Miami Valley Income Tax Ordinance. Details are
shown in the Project Plan Activities section in Tab 3.

Executed Partnership Agreement

An executed Memorandum of Understanding between the City Dayton and MVCC will
be submitted by the April 30, 2012 deadline. A draftis attached in Tab 5.
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Project Name
Miami Valley Uniform Income Tax Ordinance
Project Description

This project is a feasibility study to examine Miami Valley municipalities’ current income
tax ordinance provisions, develop proposed uniform ordinance rules, and estimate the
costs (including revenue loss and benefits of the proposed ordinance changes. After
successful completion of this feasibility study the next step is to obtain consensus and
the necessary legislative approvals to enact the uniform Miami Valley Income Tax
Ordinance.

Various groups in the state of Ohio are advocating a more business friendly
environment to attract and retain more Ohio businesses. One component of that
discussion is the concept of easing the burden of calculating local income taxes for
individuals and businesses that operate in different jurisdictions. A major concern cited
is the lack of uniformity among Ohio cities in the provisions contained within their
income tax ordinances. These differences require additional calculations which can
result in a higher financial burden on taxpayers in Ohio compared to states that do not
have a local income tax or states that have a single local income tax statute.
Consolidating the various Miami Valley municipal income tax ordinances into one
uniform income tax ordinance will create efficiencies and save money for individuals
and businesses.

Type of Award

Feasibility Study to determine costs and benefits of enacting a uniform income tax
ordinance for Miami Valley municipalities

Problem Statement

Income tax ordinances of Miami Valley communities have different provisions requiring
individual taxpayers and businesses with financial interests in more than one jurisdiction
to file separate income tax returns that have different requirements for each jurisdiction.
Businesses, state legislators, Governor’s Office staff, chambers of commerce and tax
preparers have stated that these different rules place a financial burden on taxpayers
and serve as an impediment to attracting new businesses to the Miami Valley and Ohio.

Targeted Approach to Innovation
Efficiency — Create one proposed income tax ordinance for the Miami Valley region to

provide greater efficiency and financial savings to individuals and businesses in
preparing local income tax returns.
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Anticipated Return on Investment

Business firms located in Montgomery County 37,894
Non-Farm business establishments 11,855
Business firms operating in multiple locations 26, 039
Estimate 60% of firms operate in areas subject to local income tax X .60

Estimated number of firms operating in areas subject to local income tax 15,623

Average annual savings local tax preparation firms estimate could

be realized by using a uniform Miami Valley Income Tax Ordinance $ 75
Estimated annual tax preparation fee savings for firms $,171,725

Return on Investment Calculation

Investment by LGIF and Dayton $88,000
Annual return on investment $1,171,725
Percent return on investment 1,331%

Source of Firm and Establishments data: Montgomery County Quick Facts from the US
Census Bureau

Probability of Successful Implementation

Based on collaborative efforts currently occurring between the main applicant, the City
of Dayton, and other Miami Valley jurisdictions, there is a high probability of success for
this endeavor. Some examples of current collaborations are listed in the Identification
of Past Success section. The member cities of MVCC have been successfully
collaborative on projects for more than 35 years.

Project Plan Activities

e Conduct a series of facilitated sessions with Miami Valley jurisdictions to:
Educate staff about the project.

Review individual municipal income tax ordinance rules.

Allow opportunity for input from the business community.

Develop potential new uniform ordinance provisions.

Discuss revenue and other effects of ordinance changes.

"0 T

e Utilize technical, legal, and income tax consultants to:
a. Develop new tax language.
b. Analyze revenue effects for each municipality.

o After completion of the feasibility study we will work to:
a. Achieve consensus around a uniform set of rules.
b. Encourage all Miami Valley jurisdictions to have their legislative bodies
adopt the new uniform Miami Valley Income Tax Ordinance.
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Ability to Replicate
The process used to analyze the costs and benefits associated with creating a local
Miami Valley Income Tax ordinance can be replicated in other regions and for the entire
state of Ohio.
Ability to Scale the Proposal
These activities can be scaled to allow other political subdivisions to be included. Our
plan is to begin with MVCC’s member cities and expand to include all Miami Valley
municipalities in this effort.
Part of Larger Consolidation Effort
No. This project is not intended to lead to a consolidation effort.
Identification of Past Success

1. Regional Dispatch Center. City of Dayton Fire and Police Departments

partnered with Montgomery County and more than 20 other public safety

departments to form a regional dispatch center to replace the smaller individual
dispatch centers.

2. Meter Reading. The City of Dayton Finance Department reads water meters for
Brookville, Trotwood, Clayton and parts of Green County.

3. Mutual Aid Agreements. The City of Dayton Fire Department has in place
Automatic Mutual Aid Response and Mutual Aid Response agreements with
bordering jurisdictions in the Miami Valley. These agreements allow Fire
personnel in participating communities to (automatically or upon request)
respond to emergencies in each other's community depending on which
community has the fire station closest to the site of the emergency.

Changes in Economic Demand

This project was conceived in response to tax preparation groups, state legislators,
chambers of commerce and state government officials expressing concerns about the
tax preparation burden placed on individuals and businesses that operate in multiple
Ohio cities that have different income tax rules.

Audit Recommendations

This project is not being proposed as a result of audit recommendations.

Promotes Community Attraction

This project will result in reduced costs associated with preparing local income taxes for
individuals and businesses that operate in multiple Ohio cities. Have one uniform



Income Tax Ordinance in the Miami Valley area will improve the business environment
and promote community attraction for the Miami Valley.
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Detailed Project Budget

1. Legal Analysis and Ordinance Drafting $25,000
2. Staff Support — Taxation Consultation $22,000
3. Economic Analysis of Revenue and Other Effects $ 8,000
4. Technical Writing $ 7,000
5. Meeting Facilitation $ 6,000
6. IT Consultant $ 5,000
7. Meeting Costs $ 4,000
8. Clerical Support $ 3,000
9. Office Supplies $ 3,000
10. Contingency $ 5,000
TOTAL $88,000

Financial Information

Three years of audited financial information have been provided. Balance Sheets,
Income Statements and Cash Flow Statements from Dayton’s 2008, 2009 and 2010
audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports are attached in Tab 5. Dayton
prepares balance sheets and income statements for governmental funds. Cash Flow
Statements are prepared for proprietary funds only.

Budgets for our Income Tax Section from 2010, 2011 and 2012 are attached as
additional information. Please notify Dayton if additional information is needed.

Anticipated Project Costs

We anticipate that the project will cost $88,000.

Amount and Type of Funds Requested

$80,000 in grant funds is requested.

Percentage of Local Matching Funds

10% in matching funds ($8,000) will be provided by the City of Dayton.
How Match will be Met

The match will be provided from the City of Dayton General Fund. A certification from
the City of Dayton Finance Director is attached in Tab 5.

In-Kind Contributions

We are not requesting funding for any past expenditure related to this project. We have
budgeted for use of City Income Tax staff if necessary or an outside Income Tax
consultant to work on the project.
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Three Years of Projected Anticipated Savings

2013-2014 $1,171,725
2014-2015 $1,195,159
2015-2016 $1,219,063
Three Year Total $3,585,947

Assumes 2% annual inflation rate.
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Executed Partnership Agreement

An executed Memorandum of Understanding between the City Dayton and MVCC will
be submitted by the April 30, 2012 deadline. A draft is attached.

Resolution of Support from City of Dayton

A resolution of support from the City of Dayton City Commission will be provided by the
April 30, 2012 deadline. A draft is attached.

Resolution of Support from MVCC

A resolution of support from our collaborative partner MVCC on behalf of its member
cities is attached.

Audit Information

This project is not being proposed as a result of any audit recommendations; therefore
an audit is not attached.

2010 Census Information

Documentation of 2010 census population for Dayton and the MVCC member cities is
attached.

Self-Score Assessment

The Self-Score Assessment is attached.
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Partnership Agreement (DRAFT)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding (“hereinafter referred to as the
“MOVU’) is entered into by and between the City of Dayton, Ohio (hereinafter referred to
as the “City) and the Miami Valley Communication Council (hereinafter referred to as
the “MVCC") on behalf of its member cities of Centerville, Germantown, Kettering,
Miamisburg, Moraine, Oakwood, Springboro, and West Carroliton (“hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “member cities”).

WHEREAS, the member cities of the MVCC include Centerville, Germantown,
Kettering, Miamisburg, Moraine, Oakwood, Springboro, and West Carrollton;

WHEREAS, the member cities have, by Resolution #2012-06, authorized the
Executive Director of the MVCC to file grant applications to the State of Ohio Local
Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies on potential shared services
projects;

WHEREAS, the collaborative partners applying for a Local Government
Innovation Fund grant are the City and the MVCC;

WHEREAS, the City will work with the MVCC on behalf of its member cities, to
obtain a feasibility study to analyze current local income tax ordinances, propose a set
of uniform income tax provisions, estimate the effects on revenues and create a uniform
income tax ordinance to be considered by communities in the Miami Valley area;

NOW THEREFORE, the partners agree to apply for and execute the
requirements of a State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund grant.

For the City: For the Member Cities and MVCC :
Timothy H. Riordan John Weithofer

Dayton City Manager MVCC Executive Director

Date: Date:

@W%S §FORM ﬁb CORREC gESS
CITY ATTORNEY
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Resolution of Support from the City of Dayton (DRAFT)

A RESOLUTION

Authorizing the City Manager to File Grant Applications
with the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund,
and Declaring an Emergency

WHEREAS, The State of Ohio established in its biannual budget a Local
Government Innovation Fund with an appropriation of $45 million; and

WHEREAS, Within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is
allocated for grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies; and

WHEREAS, The City of Dayton would be the lead agency in preparing,
submitting and administering grant applications and awards from the Local
Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, First round grant applications are due on March 1, 2012, making
it necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health and
safety that this resolution take effect at an early date; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF DAYTON:

Section 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to file grant
applications with the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility
studies.

Section 2. That for the reasons set forth in the preamble hereof, the
Commission declares this resolution to be an emergency measure which shall take
effect immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted by the CommisSion...........oovvvvuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiennnn ,2012
Signed by the Mayor........ccoviiiiiiiiiii e ,2012

Mayor of the City of Dayton, Ohio
Attest:

Clerk of the Commission

Approved as to form:

City Attorney
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Resolution of Support from Miami Valley Communications Council

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Resolution #2012-06
Local Government Innovation Fund

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO FILE GRANT
APPLICATIONS ON BEHALF OF MVCC MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio established in its biannual budget a Local
Government Innovation Fund with an appropriation of $45 million, and

Whereas, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is aliocated for
grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services,
and

Whereas, the Gov Tech committee is wdrking on potential projects to submit for
grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund, and

Whereas, MVCC on behalf of its member cities would be the lead agency in
preparing, submitting and administering any grant applications and awards from
the Local Government Innovation Fund, and

Whereas, the first round of grant applications are due on March 1, 2012.

Now, THEREFORE, THE MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE THAT:

Section 1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized to file grant applications to
the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund on behalf of MVCC member
cities for feasibility studies on potential shared services projects.

Section 2. This resolution shall be effective upon adoption.

Approved this 15™ day of February, 2012

Attest:
ra'd
/ ’ - ~ ~ [ . 4 ;i
Cdodle s AP L
gt [ el — AN _ i el
Charles Case John K. Weithofer jf «,\
MVCC Chair i Executive Director i
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2010 Census Information

Oh . Department of
lO Development
' Policy Research and Strategic Planning Office
A State Affillate of the U.S. Census Bureau
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John R. Kasich, Governor of Ohio
Mark Kvamme, Director, Ohio Department of Development
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Ohio Oh » Department of
2010 Census Population For Cities and Villages lO Development
Census Population Percent Percent
Change Change
Name 2010 2000 1990 2000 to 2010 1990 to 2000
Aberdeen village 1,638 1,603 1,329 2.2% 20.6%
Ada village 5,952 5,682 5413 6.6% 3.1%
Adamsville village 114 127 148 -10.2% -13.0%
Addyston village 938 1,010 1,189 -71% -16.1%
Adelphi village 380 3an 390 2.4% -4.9%
Adena village 759 815 862 -6.9% -4.3%
Harrison County part 123 139 143 -11.6% -2.8%
Jefferson County part 636 876 709 -5.9% -4.7%
Akron city 199,110 217,074 223,019 -8.3% -2.7%
Albany village 828 808 774 2.5% 4.4%
Alexandria village 517 86 478 508.2% -82.2%
Alger village 860 888 884 -3.2% 0.5%
Alliance city 22,322 23,253 23,393 -4.0% -0.6%
Mahoning County part 40 58 89 -31.0% -34.8%
Stark County part 22,282 23,195 23,304 -3.9% -0.5%
Amanda village 737 707 727 4.2% -2.8%
Amberiey village 3,685 3,425 3,108 4.7% 10.2%
Amelia village 4,801 2,762 1,837 74.5% 49.8%
Amaesville village 154 184 266 -16.3% -30.8%
Ambherst city 12,021 11,797 10,332 1.9% 14.2%
Amsterdam village 511 568 644 -10.0% -11.8%
Andover village 1,146 1,269 1,216 -9.8% T 44%
Anna village 1,567 1,319 1,164 18.8% 13.3%
Ansonia village 1,174 1,146 1,279 2.6% -10.5%
Antioch village 86 89 60 -3.4% 48.3%
Antwerp village 1,736 1,740 1,675 -0.2% 3.9%
Apple Creek village 1173 999 828 17.4% 20.7%
Aquilla village 340 372 353 -8.6% 5.4%
Arcadia village 690 637 549 9.9% -2.2%
Arcanum village 2,129 2,076 1,948 2.6% 8.7%
Archbold village 4,346 4,290 3,440 1.3% 24.7%
Arlington village 1,455 1,361 1,267 7.7% 6.6%
Arlington Heights village 745 899 1,084 -17.1% -17.1%
Ashland city 20,362 21,249 20,079 -4.2% 5.8%
Ashley village 1,330 1,216 1,077 9.4% 12.9%
Ashtabula city 19,124 20,962 21,633 -8.8% -3.1%
Ashville village 4,097 3,174 2,254 29.1% 40.8%
Athalia village 373 328 334 13.7% -1.8%
Athens city 23,832 21,342 21,265 11.7% 0.4%
Attica village 899 956 944 -5.9% 1.2%
Aurora city 15,548 13,556 9,192 14.7% 47.5%
Avon city 21,193 11,446 7,337 86.2% 56.0%
Avon Lake city 22,581 18,145 15,066 24.4% 20.4%
Bailey Lakes village 37 397 397 -8.5% 0.0%
Bainbridge village 860 1,012 968 -15.0% 45%
Bairdstown village 130 130 137 0.0% -6.1%
Baltic village 796 743 703 7.0% 5.7%
Coshocton County part 10 0 0 n.a. n.a.
Holmes County part 144 114 134 26.3% -14.9%
Tuscarawas County part 641 629 569 1.9% 10.5%
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Ohio Oh - Department of
2010 Census Population For Cities and Villages lO Development
Census Population Percent Percent
Change Change
Name 2010 2000 1990 2000 to 2010 1990 to 2000
Baltimore village 2,966 2,881 2,971 3.0% -3.0%
Barberton city 26,550 27,899 27,623 -4.8% 1.0%
Barnesville village 4,193 4,225 4,326 -0.8% -2.3%
Bamhill village 396 364 333 8.8% 9.3%
Batavia village 1,509 1,617 1,731 -6.7% -6.6%
Batesville village ral 100 91 -29.0% 9.9%
Bay View village 632 692 754 -8.7% -8.2%
Bay Village city 15,651 16,087 17,000 -2.7% -5.4%
Beach City village 1,033 1,137 1,051 -9.1% 8.2%
Beachwood city 11,953 12,186 10,677 -1.9% 14.1%
Bealisville village 409 423 469 -3.3% -9.8%
Beaver village 449 464 330 -3.2% 40.6%
Beavercreek city 45,193 37,984 33,626 19.0% 13.0%
Beaverdam village 382 366 471 7.3% -24.4%
Bedford city 13,074 14,214 14,822 -8.0% -4.1%
Bedford Heights city 10,751 11,376 12,131 -5.6% -6.2%
Bellaire village 4,278 4,892 6,028 -12.6% -18.8%
Bellbrook city 6,943 7,009 6,611 -0.9% 7.6%
Belle Center village 813 807 827 0.7% -2.4%
Bellefontaine city 13,370 13,069 12,142 2.3% 7.6%
Belle Valley village 223 263 273 -16.2% -3.7%
Bellevue city 8,202 8,193 8,146 0.1% 0.6%
Erie County part 2 0 -— n.a. n.a.
Huron County part 3,673 3,841 3,910 -4.4% -1.8%
Sandusky County part 4,627 4,352 4,236 4.0% 2.7%
Bellville village 1,918 1,773 1,586 8.2% 11.8%
Belmont village 463 532 451 -14.8% 18.0%
Belmore village 143 171 153 -16.4% 11.8%
Beloit village 978 1,024 1,032 -4.5% -0.8%
Belpre city 6,441 6,660 6,796 -3.3% -2.0%
Bentleyville village 864 947 672 -8.8% 40.9%
Benton Ridge village 299 315 352 -5.1% -10.5%
Berea city 19,093 18,970 19,051 0.6% -0.4%
Bergholz village 664 769 743 -13.7% 3.5%
Berkey village 237 265 250 -10.6% 6.0%
Berlin Heights village 714 685 698 4.2% -1.9%
Bethel village 2,711 2,637 2,336 2.8% 12.9%
Bethesda village 1,256 1,413 1,181 -11.1% 19.6%
Bettsville village 661 784 775 -16.7% 1.2%
Beverly village 1,313 1,282 1,480 2.4% -13.4%
Bexley city 13,067 13,203 13,088 -1.1% 0.9%
Blakeslee village 96 130 2 -26.2% 7.4%
Blanchester village 4,243 4,220 4,206 0.5% 0.3%
Clinton County part 4,243 4,220 4,208 0.5% 0.3%
Warren County part 0 0 0 n.a. n.a.
Bloomdale village 678 724 596 -6.4% 21.5%
Bloomingburg village 938 874 747 7.3% 17.0%
Bloomingdale village 202 221 199 -8.6% 11.1%
Bloomville village 956 1,045 949 -8.5% 10.1%
Blue Ash city 12,114 12,613 11,860 -3.2% 5.56%
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Ohio s Department of
2010 Census Population For Cities and Villages Oth | Development

Census Population Percent Percent
Change Change
Name 2010 2000 1990 2000 to 2010 1990 to 2000
Bluffton village 4,125 3,896 3,391 6.9% 14.9%
Allen County part 3,952 3,719 3,202 8.3% 16.1%
Hancock County part 173 177 189 -2.3% -6.3%
Bolivar village 994 894 866 11.2% 3.2%
Boston Heights village g 1,300 1,186 736 9.6% 61.1%
Botkins village 1,165 1,205 1,340 -4.1% -10.1%
Bowerston village 398 414 386 -3.9% 7.3%
Bowersville village 312 290 242 7.6% 19.8%
Bowiling Green city 30,028 29,636 28,176 1.3% 6.2%
Bradford village 1,842 1,859 2,005 -0.9% -1.3%
Darke County part 765 825 894 -7.3% -1.7%
Miami County part 1,077 1,034 1,11 4.2% -6.9%
Bradner village 985 1171 1,093 -16.9% 7.1%
Brady Lake village 464 513 513 -9.6% 0.0%
Bratenahi village 1,197 1,337 1,356 -10.5% -1.4%
Brecksville city 13,656 13,382 11,818 2.0% 13.2%
Bremen village 1,426 1,265 1,400 12.6% -9.6%
Brewster village 2,112 2,324 2,307 -9.1% 0.7%
Brice village 114 70 106 62.9% -34.0%
Bridgeport village 1,831 2,186 2,318 -16.2% -5.7%
Broadview Helghts city 19,400 15,967 12,219 21.5% 30.7%
Brooklyn city 11,169 11,588 11,708 -3.6% -1.0%
Brooklyn Heights village 1,643 1,668 1,450 -1.0% 7.4%
Brook Park city 19,212 21,218 22,865 -9.5% -7.2%
Brookside village 632 644 693 -1.9% -7.1%
Brookville city 5,884 5,289 4,619 11.2% 14.6%
Broughton village 120 166 177 -27.7% -8.2%
Brunswick city 34,255 33,388 28,230 2.6% 18.3%
Bryan city 8,645 8,333 8,348 2.5% -0.2%
Buchtel village 568 574 637 -2.8% -9.9%
Athens County part 543 563 — -3.6% n.a.
Hocking County part 16 1 - 36.4% n.a.
Buckeye Lake village 2,748 3,049 2,986 -9.9% 21%
Fairfield County part 15 3 - 400.0% n.a.
Licking County part 2,731 3,046 .- -10.3% n.a.
Buckland village 233 255 249 -8.6% 2.4%
Bucyrus city 12,362 13,224 13,496 -6.6% -2.0%
Burbank village 207 279 297 -25.8% -6.1%
Burgoon village 172 199 240 -13.6% -17.1%
Burkettsville village 244 254 258 -3.9% -1.6%
Darke County part 74 74 76 0.0% -2.6%
Mercer County part 170 180 182 -5.6% -1.1%
Burton village 1,455 1,450 1,349 0.3% 7.5%
Butier village 933 91 950 1.3% -3.1%
Butlerville village 163 231 214 -29.4% 7.9%
Byesville village 2,438 2,674 2,600 -6.3% -1.0%
Cadiz village 3,353 3,308 3,439 1.4% -3.8%
Cairo village 524 499 482 5.0% 3.5%
Caldwell village 1,748 1,966 1,778 -10,6% 10.0%
Caledonia village 577 578 648 -0.2% -10.8%

———
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Cambridge city 10,635 11,520 11,748 -7.7% -1.9%
Camden village 2,046 2,302 2,210 -1.1% 4.2%
Campbel! city 8,235 9,460 10,038 -12.9% -5.8%
Canal Fulton city 5,479 5,061 4,157 8.3% 21.7%
Canal Winchester village 7,101 4,478 2,708 58.6% 65.4%
Fairfield County part 815 284 0 187.0% n.a.
Franklin County part 6,286 4,194 2,708 49.9% 54.9%
Canfield city 7,515 7,374 5,409 1.9% 36.3%
Canton city 73,007 80,806 84,161 -9.7% -4.0%
Cardington village 2,047 1,849 1,788 10.7% 3.4%
Carey village 3,674 3,901 3,684 -5.8% 5.9%
Carlisle city 4,915 5,121 4,866 -4.0% . 5.2%
Montgomery County part 206 245 256 -16.3% -4.3%
Warren County part 4,710 4,876 4,610 -3.4% 5.8%
Carroll village 524 488 545 7.4% -10.5%
Carroliton village 3,241 3,190 2,983 1.6% 6.9%
Casstown village 267 322 231 -17.1% 39.4%
Castalia village 852 936 900 -8.9% 3.9%
Castine village 130 129 174 0.8% -26.9%
Catawba village 272 312 254 -12.8% 22.8%
Ceclil village 188 216 251 -13.0% -13.9%
Cedarville village 4,019 3,828 3,205 5.0% 19.4%
Celina city 10,400 10,303 9,650 0.9% 6.8%
Centerburg village 1,773 1,432 1,323 23.8% 8.2%
Centerville village 103 134 153 -23.1% -12.4%
—> CentefMi¥‘city 23,999 23,024 21,082 4.2% 9.2%
Greene County part 2 - - n.a. n.a.
Montgomery County part 23,997 - - n.a. n.a.
Chagrin Falis village 4,113 4,024 4,146 2.2% -2.9%
Chardon city 5,148 5,156 4,446 -0.2% 16.0%
Chatfield village 189 218 210 -13.3% 3.8%
Chauncey village 1,049 1,087 980 1.7% 8.9%
Cherry Fork village 166 127 190 22.0% -33.2%
Chesapeake village 745 842 1,073 -11.6% -21.5%
Cheshire village 132 221 241 -40.3% -8.3%
Chesterhill village 289 306 337 -6.2% -9.5%
Chesterville village 228 193 277 18.1% -30.3%
Cheviot city 8,375 9,015 9,616 -7.1% -6.3%
Chickasaw village 290 364 390 -20.3% -6.7%
Chillicothe city 21,901 21,796 21,921 0.56% -0.6%
Chilo village 63 97 136 -36.1% -28.7%
Chippewa Lake village 1 823 -— -13.6% n.a.
Christiansburg village 526 553 581 -4.9% -4.8%
Cincinnati city 296,943 331,285 364,040 -10.4% -9.0%
Circleville city 13,314 13,485 11,709 -1.3% 16.2%
Clarington village 384 444 417 -13.5% 6.5%
Clarksburg village 455 516 530 -11.8% -2.6%
Clarksville village 548 497 487 10.3% 2.1%
Clay Center village 278 294 298 -6.1% -1.3%
Clayton city 13,209 13,347 717 -1 .O%. 1761.5%
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Cleveland city 396,816 478,403 505,616 -17.1% -5.4%
Cleveland Heights city 46,121 49,958 54,052 -7.7% -7.6%
Cleves village 3,234 2,790 2,208 16.9% 26.4%
Clifton village 162 179 188 -15.1% -4.8%
Clark County part 48 49 74 -2.0% -33.8%
Greene County part 104 130 114 -20.0% 14.0%
Clinton village 1,214 1,337 1,176 -9.2% 13.8%
Cloverdale village 168 201 259 -16.4% -22.4%
Clyde city 6,325 6,064 5,776 4.3% 5.0%
Coal Grove village 2,165 2,027 2,260 6.8% -10.3%
Coalton village 479 545 551 -12.1% -1.1%
Coldwater village 4,427 4,482 4,335 -1.2% 3.4%
College Corner village 407 424 397 -4.0% 6.8%
Butler County part 191 182 1m 4.9% 64.0%
Preble County part 216 242 286 -10.7% -15.4%
Columbiana city 6,384 5,635 4,961 13.3% 13.6%
Columbiana County part 5,718 5,273 4,948 8.4% 6.6%
Mahoning County part 666 362 13 84.0% 2684.6%
Columbus city 787,033 711,470 632,958 10.6% 12.4%
Delaware County part 7,245 1,891 — 283.1% n.a.
Fairfield County part 9,666 7,447 688 29.8% 982.4%
Frankiin County part 770,122 702,132 632,270 9.7% 11.0%
Columbus Grove village 2,137 2,200 2,222 -2.9% -1.0%
Commercial Point village 1,582 776 408 103.9% 90.2%
Conesville village 347 364 432 -4.7% -16.7%
Congress village 186 192 146 -3.6% 32.4%
Conneaut city 12,841 12,485 13,241 2.9% -6.7%
Continental village 1,163 1,188 1,223 -2.9% -2.9%
Convoy village 1,085 1,110 1,194 -2.3% -7.0%
Coolville village 496 528 648 -6.1% -18.56%
Corning village 583 593 698 1.7% -15.0%
Cortland city 7,104 6,830 5,666 4.0% 20.5%
Corwin village 421 256 214 64.5% 19.6%
Coshocton city 11,2168 11,682 12,193 -4.0% -4.2%
Covington village 2,584 2,659 2,603 1.0% -1.7%
Craig Beach village 1,180 1,254 1,402 -5.9% -10.6%
Crestline city 4,630 5,088 4,938 -9.0% 3.0%
Crawford County part 4,612 5,086 4,926 -9.3% 3.2%
Richland County part 18 3 13 500.0% -76.9%
Creston village 2171 2,161 1,848 0.5% 16.9%
Maedina County part 99 35 -— 182.9% n.a.
Wayne County part 2,072 2,126 - -25% n.a.
Cridersville village 1,852 1,817 1,876 1.9% -3.1%
Crooksville village 2,534 2,483 2,601 2.1% -45%
Crown City village 413 a1 467 0.5% . -12.0%
Cumberiand village 367 402 316 -8.7% 27.2%
Custar village 179 208 210 -13.9% -1.0%
Cuyahoga Falis city 49,652 49,374 48,950 0.6% 0.9%
Cuyahoga Heights village 638 599 682 6.5% -12.2%
Cygnet village 597 564 6587 5.9% -3.9%
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Dalton village 1,830 1,608 1,377 14.0% 16.6%
Danville village 1,044 1,104 1,024 -6.4% 7.8%
Darbyville village 222 293 271 -24.2% 8.1%
DaytBHidity 141,627" 166,179 182,044 -14.8% -8.7%
Deer Park city 6,736 6,982 6,181 -4.1% -3.2%
Deersville village 79 82 80 -3.7% 25%
Defiance city 16,494 16,465 16,768 0.2% -1.8%
De Graff village 1,286 1,212 1,341 6.0% -9.6%
Delaware city 34,753 26,243 20,030 37.7% 26.0%
Deliroy village 356 294 318 21.1% -7.5%
Delphos city 7,101 6,944 7,091 2.3% -2.1%
Allen County part 3,938 3,901 3,901 0.9% 0.0%
Van Wert County part 3,163 3,043 3,190 3.9% -4.6%
Delta village 3,103 2,930 2,849 5.9% 2.8%
Dennison village 2,655 2,992 3,282 -11.3% -8.8%
Deshler village 1,799 1,831 1,831 -1.7% 0.0%
Dexter City village 129 166 158 -22.3% 5.1%
Dillonvale village 665 781 887 -14.9% -12.0%
Donnelsville village 304 293 284 3.8% 3.2%
Dover city 12,826 12,210 11,329 5.0% 7.8%
Doylestown village 3,051 2,799 2,664 9.0% 5.1%
Dresden village 1,629 1,423 1,681 7.4% -10.0%
Dublin city 41,751 31,392 16,371 33.0% 91.8%
Delaware County part 4,018 4,283 3,811 -8.2% 12.4%
Franklin County part 35,367 27,087 12,5561 30.6% 116.8%
Union County part 2,366 22 9 10654.6% 144.4%
Dunkirk village 875 962 862 -8.1% 10.4%
Dupont village 318 268 294 18.7% -8.8%
East Canton village 1,591 1,629 1,742 -2.3% -6.6%
East Cleveland city 17,843 27,217 33,096 -34.4% -17.8%
Eastlake city 18,677 20,256 21,161 -8.3% -4.3%
East Liverpool city 11,196 13,089 13,654 -14.5% 4.1%
East Palestine city 4,721 4,917 5,168 -4.0% -4.9%
East Sparta village 819 806 732 1.6% 10.1%
Eaton city 8,407 8,133 7,396 3.4% 10.0%
Edgerton village 2,012 2,117 1,896 -5.0% 11.7%
Edison village 437 437 438 0.0% 0.2%
Edon village 834 898 887 -7.1% 1.2%
Eldorado village 509 543 568 -6.3% -4.4%
Elgin village 57 50 70 14.0% -28.6%
Elida village 1,906 1,917 1,493 -0.6% 28.4%
Elmore village 1,410 1,426 1,334 -1.1% 6.9%
Ottawa County part 1,410 1,426 - -1.1% n.a.
Sandusky County part 0 0 -— n.a. n.a.
Elmwood Place village 2,188 2,681 2,936 -18.4% -8.7%
Elyria city 54,633 55,953 56,746 -2.5% -1.4%
Empire village 299 300 351 -0.3% -14.5%
Englewood city 13,465 12,236 11,432 10.1% 7.0%
Enon village 2,416 2,638 2,680 -8.5% -1.6%
Euclid city 48,920 52,717 54,875 7.2% -3.9%
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Evendale village 2,767 3,090 3,175 -10.5% -2.7%
Fairborn city 32,352 32,052 31,300 0.9% 2.4%
Fairfax village 1,699 1,938 2,029 -12.3% -4.5%
Fairfield city 42,510 42,097 39,729 1.0% 6.0%
Butler County part 42,510 42,097 39,729 1.0% 6.0%
Hamilton County part 0 0 0 n.a. n.a. .
Fairlawn city 7,437 7,307 5,779 1.8% 26.4%
Fairport Harbor village 3,109 3,180 2,980 -2.2% 6.7%
Fairview village 83 81 89 2.5% -9.0%
Belmont County part 0 0 0 n.a. n.a.
Guernsey County part 83 81 89 2.5% -9.0%
Fairview Park city 16,826 17,672 18,028 -4.2% -2.6%
Farmersville village 1,009 980 932 3.0% 6.2%
Fayette village 1,283 1,340 1,248 -4.3% 7.4%
Fayetteville village 330 372 381 -11.3% -2.4%
Felicity village 818 922 864 -11.3% 6.7%
Findlay city 41,202 38,967 35,675 5.7% 9.2%
Fletcher village ) 473 510 635 -1.3% -4.7%
Florida village 232 246 314 -6.7% -21.7%
Flushing village . 879 900 1,042 -2.3% -13.6%
Forest village 1,461 1,488 1,639 -1.8% -9.2%
Hardin County part 1,461 -— — n.a. n.a.
Wyandot County part 0 - -— n.a. n.a.
Forest Park city 18,720 19,463 18,609 -3.8% 4.6%
Fort Jennings village 485 432 449 12.3% -3.8%
Fort Loramie village 1,478 1,344 1,042 10.0% 29.0%
Fort Recovery village 1,430 1,273 1,313 12.3% -3.0%
Fort Shawnee village 3,728 3,855 4,128 -3.3% -8.6%
Fostoria city 13,441 13,831 14,979 -3.5% -7.0%
Hancock County part 2,932 3,054 3,088 -4.0% -1.1%
Seneca County part 9,471 10,036 10,848 -5.6% -7.5%
Wood County part 1,038 842 1,043 23.3% -19.3%
Frankfort village 1,084 1,011 1,065 5.2% -5.1%
Franklin city 1,7 11,396 11,026 3.3% 3.4%
Frazeysburg village 1,326 1,201 1,170 10.4% 2.6%
Fredericksburg village 423 487 493 -13.1% -1.2%
Fredericktown village 2,493 2,428 2,436 2.7% -0.3%
Freeport village 369 398 474 -71.3% -16.0%
Fremont city 16,734 17,375 17,648 -3.7% -1.5%
Fulton village 268 264 302 -2.3% -12.6%
Fultonham village 176 161 185 16.6% -18.4%
Gahanna city 33,248 32,636 27,791 1.9% 17.4%
Galena village 653 305 330 114.1% -7.6%
Galion city 10,512 11,341 11,859 -1.3% -4.4%
Crawford County part 10,512 — - n.a. n.a.
Morrow County part 0 — -— n.a. n.a.
Richland County part 0 - - n.a. n.a.
Gallipolis village 3,641 4,180 4,831 -12.9% -13.5%
Gambier village 2,391 1,871 2,073 27.8% 9.7%
Gann village 125 143 156 -12.6% -8.3%
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Garfield Heights city 28,849 30,734 31,739 -6.1% -3.2%
Garrettsville village 2,325 2,262 2,014 2.8% 12.3%
Gates Mills village 2,270 2,493 2,508 -8.9% -0.6%
Geneva city 6,215 6,595 6,697 -5.8% 0.0%
Genéva-on-the-Lake village 1,288 1,545 1,626 -16.6% -5.0%
Genoa village 2,336 2,230 2,262 4.8% -1.4%
Georgetown village 4,331 3,691 3,627 17.3% 1.8%
== Garmdhtown village 5,647 4,884 4,916 13.6% 0.7%
Gettysburg village 613 558 549 -8.1% 1.6%
Gibsonburg village 2,681 2,506 2,580 3.0% -2.9%
Gilboa village 184 170 210 8.2% -19.0%
Girard city 9,958 10,902 11,304 -8.7% -3.6%
Glandorf village 1,001 919 829 8.9% 10.9%
Glendale village 2,155 2,188 2,445 -1.6% -10.6%
Glenford village 173 198 214 -12.6% -7.5%
Glenmont village 272 283 213 -3.9% 32.9%
Glenwillow village 923 449 457 105.6% -1.8%
Gloria Glens Park village 425 538 432 -21.0% 24.5%
Glouster village 1,791 1,972 2,001 -9.2% -1.4%
Gnadenhutten village 1,288 1,280 1.226 0.6% 4.4%
Golf Manor village 3,611 3,999 4,154 -9.7% -3.7%
Gordon village 212 190 215 11.6% -11.6%
Grafton village 6,636 2,302 3,423 188.3% -32.7%
Grand Rapids village 966 1,002 960 -3.7% 4.4%
Grand River viilage 399 345 295 15.7% 16.9%
Grandview Heights city 6,536 6,695 7,010 -2.4% -4.5%
Granville village 5,646 3,167 4,315 78.3% -26.6%
Gratiot village 221 187 188 18.2% -0.5%
Licking County part 133 26 108 38.6% -9.4%
Muskingum County part 88 91 82 -3.3% 11.0%
Gratis village 881 934 992 -5.7% -5.8%
Graysville village 76 113 104 -32.7% 8.7%
Green city 25,699 22,817 3,553 12.6% 542.2%
Green Camp village 374 342 395 9.4% -13.4%
Greenfield city 4,639 4,906 5,172 -5.4% -5.1%
Highland County part 4,639 - — n.a. n.a.
Ross County part 0 - - n.a. n.a.
Greenhills village 3,615 4,103 4,393 -11.9% -6.6%
Green Springs village 1,368 1,247 1,422 9.7% -12.3%
Sandusky County part 738 599 714 23.2% -16.1%
Seneca County part 630 648 708 -2.8% -8.6%
Greenvilie city 13,227 13,294 12,863 -0.5% 3.4%
Greenwich village 1,476 1,626 1,442 -3.2% 5.8%
Grove City city 35,575 27,076 19,653 31.4% 37.8%
Groveport village ’ 5,363 3,866 2,857 38.8% 35.3%
Grover Hill village 402 412 541 -2.4% -23.8%
Hamden viliage 879 871 836 0.9% 4.2%
Hamersville village 546 616 608 6.0% -16.3%
Hamilton city 62,477 60,690 61,368 2.9% 1.1%
Hamler village . 6576 650 642 -11.4% 1.2%
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Hanging Rock village 221 279 297 -20.8% -6.1%
Hanover village 921 885 778 4.1% 13.8%
Hanoverton village 408 387 425 5.4% -8.9%
Harbor View village 123 99 124 24.2% -20.2%
Harpster village 204 203 238 0.5% -147%
Harrisburg village 320 332 338 -3.6% -1.8%
Franklin County part 320 326 338 -1.8% -3.6%
Pickaway County part 0 6 0 -100.0% n.a.
Harrison city 9,897 7,487 7,518 32.2% -0.4%
Harrisville village 235 259 319 -9.3% -18.8%
Harrod village 417 491 530 -15.1% -7.4%
Hartford village 397 412 410 -3.6% 0.5%
Hartville village 2,944 2,174 2,031 36.4% 7.0%
Harveysburg village 546 563 416 -3.0% 36.3%
Haskins village 1,188 638 544 86.2% 17.3%
Haviland village 215 180 223 19.4% -19.3%
Hayesville village 448 348 436 28.7% -20.2% .
Heath city 10,310 8,627 7,231 20.9% 17.9%
Hebron village 2,336 2,034 2,076 14.8% -2.0%
Helena village 224 236 266 -5.1% -11.3%
Hemlock village 166 142 175 9.2% -18.9%
Hicksville village 3,681 3,649 3,664 -1.9% -0.4%
Higginsport village 251 291 318 -13.7% -8.5%
Highland village 254 283 247 -10.2% 14.6%
Highland Heights city 8,346 8,082 6,249 3.3% 29,3%
Highland Hills village 1,130 1,618 - -30.2% n.a.
Hilliard city 28,435 24,230 11,796 17.4% 105.4%
Hills and Dales village 221 260 308 -15.0% -16.8%
Hillsboro city 6,605 6,368 6,235 3.7% 2.1%
Hiram village 1,408 1,242 1,329 13.2% -8.5%
Holgate village 1,108 1,194 1,304 -7.1% -8.4%
Holiday City village 52 49 — 6.1% n.a.
Holland village 1,764 1,308 1,210 36.1% 7.9%
Hollansburg village 227 214 295 ’ 6.1% -27.5%
Holloway village 338 345 346 -2.0% -0.3%
Holmesville village 372 386 446 -3.6% -13.6%
Hopedale village 950 984 679 -3.5% 44,9%
Hoytville village 303 296 322 2.4% -8.1%
Hubbard city 7,874 8,284 8,248 -4.9% 0.4%
Huber Heights city 38,101 38,212 38,716 -0.3% -1.3%
Greene County part 0 — - n.a. n.a.
Miami County part 959 35 30 2640.0% 16.7%
Montgomery County part 37,142 38,177 38,686 -2.7% -1.3%
Hudson city 22,262 22,439 5,159 -0.8% 334.9%
Hunting Valley village 706 736 816 -4.1% -9.9%
Cuyahoga County part 589 690 664 -0.2% -111%
Geauga County part 116 145 152 -20.0% -4.6%
Huntsville village 431 454 359 -56.1% 26.5%
Huron city 7,149 7,958 7,030 -10.2% 13.2%
Independence city 7,133 7,109 6,500 0.3% 1 9.4%
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Irondale village 387 418 377 -7.4% 10.9%
{ronton city 11,129 11,21 12,751 -0.7% -12.1%
Ithaca village 136 102 122 33.3% -16.4%
Jackson city 6,397 6,184 6,144 3.4% 0.7%
Jacksonburg village 63 67 80 -6.0% -16.3%
Jackson Center village 1,462 1,369 1,398 6.8% -21%
Jacksonville village 481 544 546 -11.6% -0.4%
Jamestown village 1,993 1,917 1,794 4.0% 6.9%
Jefferson village 3,120 3,672 3,331 -12.7% 7.2%
Jeffersonville village 1,203 1,288 1,296 -6.6% -0.6%
Jenera village 221 235 307 -6.0% -23.5%
Jeromesville village 6562 478 578 17.6% -17.3%
Jerry City village 427 453 506 -5.7% -10.5%
Jerusalem village 161 152 137 5.9% 10.9%
Jewett village 692 784 784 -11.7% o 0.0%
Johnstown village 4,632 3,440 3,198 34.7% 7.6%
Junction City village 819 818 7 0.1% 6.1%
Kalida village 1,542 1,031 947 49.6% 8.9%
Kelleys Island village 312 367 159 -16.0% 130.8%
Kent city 28,904 27,906 28,835 3.6% -3.2%
Kenton city 8,262 8,336 8,356 -0.9% -0.2%
Kettaiifig ity 66,163 57,602 60,569 -2.3% 5.1%
Greene County part 467 0 0 n.a. n.a.
Montgomery County part 55,696 57,502 60,569 -3.1% -5.1%
Kettlersville village 179 175 194 ©2.3% -9.8%
Kiflbuck village 817 839 802 -2.6% 4.6%
Kingston village 1,032 1,032 1,168 0.0% -10.9%
Kipton village 243 265 302 -8.3% -12.3%
Kirby village 118 132 161 -10.6% -18.0%
Kirkersville village 525 520 563 1.0% -7.6%
Kirtland city 6,866 8,670 5,881 2.9% 13.4%
Kirtland Hills village 646 597 633 8.2% -6.7%
Lafayette village 445 304 445 46.4% -31.7%
LaGrange village 2,103 1,815 1,190 15.9% 52.5%
Lakeline village 226 165 218 37.0% -24.3%
Lakemore village 3,068 2,561 2,697 19.8% -1.4%
Lakeview village 1,072 1,074 1,056 -0.2% 1.7%
Lakewood city 62,131 56,646 59,718 -8.0% 6.1%
Lancaster city s 38,780 35,335 34,507 9.7% 2.4%
La Rue village 747 776 801 -3.6% -3.2%
Latty village 193 200 203 -3.5% -1.6%
Laura viilage 474 487 459 -2.7% 6.1%
Laurelville village 527 533 603 -1.1% -11.6%
Lebanon city 20,033 16,962 10,4563 18.1% 62.3%
Leesburg village 1,314 1,263 1,091 4.9% 14.8%
Leesville village 158 184 162 -14.1% 13.6%
Leetonia village 1,969 2,043 2,083 -4.1% -1.0%
Leipsic village 2,093 2,236 2,211 -6.4% 1.1%
Lewisburg village 1,820 1,798 1,579 1.2% 13.9%
Lewisville village 176 233 236 -24.5% -1.3%
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Lexington village 4,822 4,165 4,124 15.8% 1.0%
Liberty Center village 1,180 1,109 1,074 6.4% 3.3%
Lima city 38,771 40,081 45,549 -3.3% -12.0%
Limaville village 151 193 160 -21.8% 20.6%
Lincoln Heights village 3,286 4,113 4,805 -20.1% -14.4%
Lindsey village 446 504 519 -11.6% -2.9%
Linndale village 179 117 159 63.0% -26.4%
Lisbon village 2,821 2,788 3,037 1.2% -8.2%
Lithopolis village 1,106 600 629 84.3% 13.4%
Fairfield County part 1,074 - - n.a. n.a.
Franklin County part 32 - - n.a. n.a.
Lockbourne village 237 280 156 -15.4% 80.6%
Franklin County part 237 - — n.a. n.a.
Pickaway County part 0 -— - n.a. n.a.
Lockington village 141 208 218 -32.2% -4.6%
Lockland village 3,449 3,707 4,357 -7.0% -14.9%
Lodi village 2,748 3,081 3,042 -10.3% 0.6%
Logan city 7,152 6,704 6,725 6.7% -0.3%
London city 9,904 8,771 7,807 12.9% 12.3%
Lorsin city 64,097 68,662 71,245 -6.6% -3.6%
Lordstown village 3,417 3,633 3,404 -5.9% 6.7%
Lore City village 325 305 389 6.6% -21.6%
Loudonville village 2,641 2,908 2,941 -9.1% -1.2%
Ashland County part 2,687 2,848 2,844 -9.2% 0.1%
Holmes County part 54 68 97 -6.9% -40.2%.
Louisville city 9,186 8,904 8,087 3.2% 10.1%
Loveland city 12,081 11,677 9,930 3.6% 17.6%
Clermont County part 1,941 1,835 1,643 6.8% 11.7%
Hamiiton County part 9,348 9,661 8,263 -2.2% 16.7%
Warren County part 792 281 24 181.9% 1070.8%
Lowell village 549 628 603 -12.6% 4.1%
Lowellville village 1,166 1,281 1,349 -9.8% -6.0%
Lower Salem village 86 109 108 -21.1% 0.8%
Lucas village 616 620 733 -0.8% -154%
Luckey village 1,012 998 848 1.4% 17.7%
Ludlow Falls village 208 210 295 -1.0% -28.8%
Lynchburg village 1,499 1,360 1,193 11.0% 13.2%
Clinton County part 2 2 -— 0.0% n.a.
Highland County part 1,497 1,348 - 11% - n.a.
Lyndhurst city 14,001 16,279 15,982 -8.4% -4.4%
Lyons village 662 559 608 0.5% -8.1%
McArthur village 1,701 1,888 1,541 -9.9% 22.5%
McClure village 725 761 807 -4.7% -5.7%
McComb village 1,648 1,676 1,643 -1.7% 8.6%
McConneisville village 1,784 1,676 1,804 6.4% 7.1%
McDonald vitlage 3,263 3,481 3,526 -6.3% -1.3%
Macedonia city 11,188 9,224 7,609 21.3% 22.8%
McGuffey village 501 522 529 -4.0% -1.3
Macksburg village 186 202 196 -7.9% 3.1%
Madeira city 8,726 8,923 9,141 -2.2% -2.4%

Page 5-D12



Ohio Oh L Department of
2010 Census Population For Cities and Villages lO Development

Census Population Percent Percent
Change Change
Name 2010 2000 1990 2000 to 2010 1990 to 2000
Madison village 3,184 2,921 2,477 9.0% 17.9%
Magnetic Springs village 268 323 355 -17.0% -9.0%
Magnolia village 978 931 932 5.0% -0.1%
Carroll County part 266 314 330 -156.3% -4.8%
Stark County part 712 617 602 15.4% 2.5%
Maineville village 975 885 331 10.2% 167.4%
Malinta village 265 285 339 -7.0% -16.9%
Maita village 671 696 794 -3.6% -12.3%
Malvern village 1,189 1,218 1,11 -2.4% 9.6%
Manchester village 2,023 2,043 2,211 -1.0% -7.6%
Mansfield city 47,821 49,346 50,627 -3.1% -2.5%
Mantua village 1,043 1,046 1,17 -0.3% -10.7%
Maple Heights city 23,138 26,156 27,089 -11.5% -3.4%
Marble Cliff village 573 646 629 -11.3% 2.7%
Marblehead village 903 762 733 18.5% 4.0%
Marengo village 342 297 375 15.2% -20.8%
Mariemont village 3,403 3,408 3,118 -0.1% 9.3%
Marietta city 14,085 14,615 15,026 -3.0% -3.4%
Marion city 36,837 35,318 34,075 4.3% 3.6%
Marseilles village 112 124 152 -8.7% -18.4%
Marshaliville village 756 826 734 -8.5% 12.5%
Martinsburg village 237 185 193 28.1% -4.1%
Martins Ferry city 6,915 7,226 7,990 -4.3% -9.6%
Martingville village 463 440 486 5.2% -9.5%
Marysvilie city 22,094 16,942 9,656 38.6% 65.1%
Mason city 30,712 22,016 11,460 39.5% 92.1%
Massillon city 32,149 31,326 31,007 2.6% 1.0%
Matamoras village 896 957 1,002 -6.4% -4.5%
Maumee city 14,286 15,237 15,561 -6.2% -2.1%
Mayfield village 3,460 3,435 3,462 0.7% -0.8%
Mayfield Heights city 19,156 19,386 19,847 -1.2% -2.3%
Mechanicsburg village 1,644 1,744 1,803 -6.7% -3.3%
Medina city 26,678 25,139 19,231 6.1% 30.7%
Melrose village 275 322 284 -14.6% 13.4%
Mendon village 662 697 702 -5.0% -0.7%
Mentor city 47,159 50,278 47,358 -6.2% 6.2%
Mentor-on-the-Lake city 7,443 8,127 8,271 -8.4% -1.7%
Metamora village 827 563 514 11.4% 9.5%
Meyers Lake village 569 565 497 0.7% 13.7%
= Miami#bury city 20,181 19,489 17,834 3.6% 9.3%
Middleburg Heights city 15,946 15,542 14,702 2.6% 57%
Middlefield village 2,694 2,233 1,898 20.6% 17.7%
Middle Point village 576 593 641 -2.9% -7.5%
Middleport village 2,530 2,525 2,737 0.2% -7.7%
Middietown city 48,694 51,606 46,029 -5.6% 12.1%
Butler County part 45,994 49,574 45,991 -7.2% 7.8%
Warren County part 2,700 2,031 38 32.9% 5244.7%
Midiand village 315 265 301 18.9% -12.0%
Midvale village 754 647 600 37.8% -8.8%
Midway village 322 274 307 17.6% -10.7%
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Mifflin village 137 144 170 -4.9% -15.3%
Milan village 1,367 1,445 1,494 -5.4% -3.3%
Erie County part 1,004 1,025 1,056 -2.0% -2.9%
Huron County part 363 420 438 -13.6% 4.1%
Milford city 6,709 6,284 5,661 6.8% 11.0%
Clermont County part 6,680 6,249 5,665 6.9% 10.5%
Hamiiton County part 29 36 6 17.1% 483.3%
Milford Center village 792 626 688 26.5% -9.0%
Millbury village 1,200 1,161 1,079 3.4% 7.6%
Milledgeville village 12 122 115 -8.2% 6.1%
Miller City village 137 136 160 0.7% -16.0%
Millersburg village 3,026 3,326 3,051 -9.0% 9.0%
Millersport village 1,044 963 1,012 8.4% -4.8%
Millville village 708 817 747 -13.3% 9.4%
Milton Center village 144 196 206 -26.2% -6.3%
Miltonsburg village 43 29 57 48.3% -49.1%
Mineral City village 727 841 676 -13.6% 46.3%
Minerva village 3,720 3,934 4,374 -6.4% -10.1%
Carroll County part 1,776 1,898 2,087 -8.4% -9.1%
Columbiana County part 2 5 [} -60.0% n.a.
Stark County part 1,942 2,031 2,287 -4.4% -11.2%
Minerva Park village 1,272 1,288 1,463 -1.2% -12.0%
Mingo Junction village 3,454 3,631 4,297 -4.9% -16.5%
Minster village 2,806 2,794 2,650 0.4% 5.4%
Mogadore village 3,853 3,893 3,900 -1.0% -0.2%
Portage County part 1,007 942 1,049 6.9% -10.2%
Summit County part 2,846 2,951 2,851 -3.6% 3.5%
Monroe city 12,442 7133 4,530 74.4% 57.6%
Butler County part 12,322 7,086 4,438 73.9% 59.7%
Warren County part 120 47 92 165.3% -48.9%
Monroeville village 1,400 1,433 1,378 -2.3% 4.0%
Montezuma village 165 191 228 -13.6% -16.2%
Montgomery city 10,251 10,163 9,753 0.9% 4.2%
Montpelier village 4,072 4,320 4,299 -5.7% 0.5%
~—>Morainé.city 6,307 6,897 5,989 -8.6% 16.2%
Moreland Hills village 3,320 3,298 3,354 0.7% -1.7%
Morral village 399 388 369 2.8% 6.1%
Morristown village 303 299 332 1.3% -9.9%
Morrow village 1,188 1,286 1,206 -7.6% 6.6%
Moscow village 186 244 2569 -24.2% -5.8%
Mount Blanchard village 492 484 490 1.7% -1.2%
Mount Cory village 204 203 242 0.6% -16.1%
Mount Eaton village 241 2486 249 -2.0% -1.2%
Mount Gilead village 3,660 3,290 2,896 11.2% 13.6%
Mount Healthy city 6,098 7,149 7,580 -14.7% -6.7%
Mount Orab village 3,664 2,307 1,929 58.8% 19.6%
Mount Pleasant village 478 635 468 -10.7% 14.3%
Mount Sterling village 1,782 1,865 1,647 -4.5% 13.2%
Mount Vernon city 16,990 14,376 14,560 18.2% -1.3%
Mount Victory village 627 600 641 45% 10.9%
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Mowrystown village 360 373 462 -3.5% -19.3%
Munroe Falls city 5,012 5,314 5,359 -5.7% -0.8%
Murray City village 449 452 501 -0.7% -9.8%
Mutual village 104 132 106 -21.2% 24.5%
Napoleon city 8,749 9,318 8,884 -6.1% 4.9%
Nashville village 197 172 190 14.5% -9.5%
Navarre village 1,957 1,440 1,635 36.9% -11.9%
Nellie village 131 134 105 -2.2% 27.6%
Nelsonviile city 5,392 5,230 4,566 3.1% 14.5%
Nevada village 760 814 846 -6.6% -3.8%
Neville village 100 127 232 -21.3% -45.3%
New Albany village 7,724 3,711 1,621 108.1% 128.9%
Franklin County part 7,701 -— - n.a. n.a.
Licking County part 23 -— - n.a. n.a.
New Alexandria village 272 222 260 22.5% -14.6%
Newark city 47,573 48,279 44,389 2.8% 4.3%
New Athens village 320 342 377 -6.4% -9.3%
New Bavaria village 99 78 ‘ 78 26.9% 0.0%
New Bloomington village 515 548 281 -6.0% 95.0%
New Boston village 2,272 2,340 2,717 -2.9% -13.9%
New Bremen village 2,978 2,909 2,568 2.4% 13.7%
Newburgh Heights village 2,167 2,389 2,421 -9.3% -1.3%
New Carlisle city 5,785 5,735 6,049 0.9% -6.2%
Newcomerstown village 3,822 4,008 4,012 -4.6% -0.1%
New Concord village 2,491 2,651 2,086 -6.0% 27.1%
New Franklin city 14,227 2,191 -— 549.3% n.a.
New Holland village 801 785 870 2.0% -9.8%
Fayette County part m 92 121 20.7% -24.0%
Pickaway County part 690 693 749 -0.4% -7.6%
New Knoxville village 879 891 838 -1.3% 6.3%
New Lebanon village 3,995 4,231 4,323 -6.6% -2.1%
New Lexington village 4,731 4,689 5,117 0.9% -8.4%
New London village 2,461 2,696 2,642 -8.7% 2.0%
New Madison village 892 817 933 9.2% -12.4%
New Miami village 2,249 2,469 2,637 -8.9% -6.4%
New Middletown village 1,621 1,682 1,912 -3.6% -12.0%
New Paris village 1,629 1,623 1,801 0.4% -9.9%
New Philadelphia city 17,288 17,066 15,698 1.4% 8.7%
New Richmond village 2,582 2,219 2,393 16.4% -1.3%
New Riegel village 249 226 298 10.2% -24.2%
New Straitsville village 722 774 864 -6.7% -10.4%
Newton Falls city 4,796 5,002 4,973 4.1% 0.6%
Newtonsville village 392 492 410 -20.3% 20.0%
Newtown village 2,672 2,420 1,589 10.4% 52.3%
New Vienna village 1,224 1,294 922 -6.4% 40.3%
New Washington village 967 987 1,063 -2.0% -6.3%
New Waterford village 1,238 1,391 1,278 -11.0% 8.8%
New Weston village 136 135 144 0.7% -6.3%
Ney village 354 364 326 -2.7% 11.7%
Niles city 19,266 20,932 21,128 -8.0% -0.9%
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North Baltimore village 3,432 3,361 3,140 21% 7.0%
North Bend village 857 603 550 42.1% 9.6%
North Canton city 17,488 16,369 14,748 6.8% 11.0%
North College Hill city 9,397 10,082 11,002 -6.8% -8.4%
North Fairfield village 560 673 507 -23% 13.0%
Northfield village 3,677 3,827 3,624 -3.9% 5.6%
North Hampton village 478 370 442 29.2% -16.3%
North Kingsville village 2,923 2,658 2,672 10.0% -0.6%
North Lewisburg village 1,490 1,688 1,188 -6.2% 33.7%
North Olmsted city 32,718 34,113 34,204 -4.1% -0.3%
North Perry village 893 838 824 6.6% 1.7%
North Randall village 1,027 906 977 13.4% -1.3%
North Ridgeville city 29,465 22,338 21,564 31.9% 3.6%
North Robinson village 205 21 2186 -2.8% -2.3%
North Royalton city 30,444 28,648 23,197 6.3% 23.5%
North Star village 236 209 268 12.9% -22.0%
Northwood city 5,265 . 5,47 5,606 -3.8% -0.6%
Norton city 12,085 11,623 11,483 4.9% 0.3%
Summit County part 12,081 11,612 11,475 4.9% 0.3%
Wayne County part 4 11 8 -83.6% 376% .
Norwalk city 17,012 16,238 14,731 48% - 10.2%
Norwich village 102 113 143 -9.7% -21.0%
Norwood city 19,207 21,675 23,674 -11.4% -8.4%
Oak Harbor village 2,769 2,841 2,637 -2.9% 7.7%
Oak Hill village 1,561 1,685 1,831 -8.0% -8.0%
Oakwood village 3,667 3,667 3,392 0.0% 8.1%
—>Oakwoed tity 9,202 9,215 8,957 0.1% 2.9%
Oakwood village 608 607 709 0.2% -14.4%
Oberlin city 8,286 8,195 8,191 1.1% 0.0%
Obetz village 4,532 3,977 3,167 14.0% 25.6%
Octa village 59 83 KAl -28.9% 16.9%
Ohio City village 706 784 913 -10.1% -14.1%
Old Washington village 279 265 305 6.3% -13.1%
Olmsted Falls city 9,024 7,962 6,741 13.3% 18.1%
Ontario city 6,225 5,303 4,026 17.4% 31.7%
Orange village 3,323 3,236 2,810 2.7% 15.2%
Orangeville village 197 189 277 4.2% -31.8%
Oregon city 20,291 19,356 18,334 4.8% 5.6%
Orient village 270 269 271 0.4% -0.7%
Orrville city 8,380 8,651 7,712 -2.0% 10.9%.
Orwell village 1,660 1,619 . 1,258 : 9.3% 20.7%
Osgood village 302 266 242 18.4% 5.4%
Ostrander village 643 405 413 68.8% -1.9%
Ottawa village 4,460 4,367 3,999 21% 9.2%
Ottawa Hills village 4,517 4,664 4,543 -1.0% 0.5%
Ottoville village 976 873 829 11.8% 5.3%
Otway village 87 86 107 1.2% -19.6%
Owensville village 794 8186 1,019 -2.7% -19.9%
Oxford city 21,371 21,943 18,937 -2.6% 16.9%
Painesville city 19,563 17,503 15,699 1.8% 11.5%
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Palestine village 200 170 176 17.6% -3.4%
Pandora village 1,153 1,188 1,007 -29% 18.0%
Parma city 81,601 85,665 87,876 -4.7% -2.6%
Parma Heights city 20,718 21,669 21,448 -4.3% 1.0%
Parral village 218 241 260 -9.5% -7.3%
Pataskala city 14,962 10,249 3,046 46.0% 236.5%
Patterson village 139 138 107 0.7% 29.0%
Paulding village 3,606 3,695 2,589 0.3% 38.9%
Payne village 1,194 1,166 1,244 24% -8.3%
Peebles village 1,782 1,739 1,782 2.5% -2.4%
Pemberville village 1,371 1,365 1,279 0.4% 6.7%
Peninsula village 566 602 569 -6.1% 7.7%
Pepper Pike city 5,979 6,040 6,185 -1.0% -2.3%
Perry village 1,663 1,195 1,012 39.2% 18.1%
Perrysburg city 20,623 16,945 12,651 21.7% 36.0%
Perrysville village 735 816 704 -9.9% 15.9%
Phillipsburg village 557 628 643 -11.3% -2.3%
Philo village 733 769 818 -4.7% -6.0%
Pickerington city 18,291 9,792 65,684 86.8% 72.3%
Fairfield County part 18,206 9,737 5,645 87.0% 72.5%
Franklin County part 86 55 39 56.4% 41.0%
Piketon village 2,181 1,907 1,723 14.4% 10.7%
Pioneer village 1,380 1,460 1,295 -5.5% 12.7%
Piqua city . 20,522 20,738 20,612 -1.0% 0.6%
Pitsburg village 388 392 432 -1.0% -9.3%
Plain City village 4,225 2,832 2,241 49.2% 26.4%
Madison County part 3,397 1,837 1,302 75.4% 48.8%
Union County part 828 895 939 -7.5% -4.7%
Plainfield village 167 1568 189 -0.6% -16.4%
Pleasant City village 447 439 424 1.8% 3.5%
Pieasant Hill village 1,200 1,134 1,066 5.8% 6.4%
Pleasant Plain village 154 156 137 -1.3% 13.9%
Pleasantville village 9260 877 926 9.6% -5.3%
Plymouth village 1,857 1,852 1,935 0.3% 4.3%
Huron County part 909 849 929 7.1% -8.6%
Richland County part 948 1,003 1,006 -6.56% -0.3%
Poland village 2,566 2,866 2,992 -10.9% 4.2%
Polk village 336 367 363 -5.9% -1.7%
Pomeroy village 1,852 1,966 2,247 -6.8% -12.6%
Portage village 438 428 480 2.3% -10.8%
Port Clinton city 6,056 6,391 7,106 -5.2% -10.1%
Port Jefferson village 37 321 340 15.6% -5.6%
Portsmouth city 20,226 20,909 22,744 -3.3% -8.1%
Port Washington village 569 562 523 3.1% 5.5%
Port Wiiliam village 254 268 233 -1.6% 10.7%
Potsdam village 288 203 289 41.9% -29.8%
Powell city 11,500 8,247 2,154 84.1% 180.0%
Powhatan Point village 1,692 1,744 1,812 -8.7% -3.8%
Proctorville viliage 574 620 760 -7.4% -18.4%
Prospect village 1,112 1,191 1,176 -6.6% 1.3%
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Put-in-Bay village 138 128 132 7.8% -3.0%
Quaker City village 502 563 558 -10.8% 0.9%
Quincy village 706 734 687 -3.8% 6.8%
Racine village 675 746 706 -9.5% 5.7%
Rarden village 159 176 194 -9.7% -9.3%
Ravenna city 11,724 11,771 12,069 -0.4% -2.5%
Rawson village 570 485 463 22.6% 0.4%
Rayland village 417 434 486 -3.9% -10.6%
Reading city 10,385 11,292 12,038 -8.0% -8.2%
Reminderville village 3,404 2,347 2,163 45.0% 8.5%
Rendbville village 36 46 19 -21.7% 142.1%
Republic village 6549 614 607 -10.6% 1.2%
Reynoldsburg city 35,893 32,069 25,767 11.9% 24.56%
Fairfield County part 910 0 0 n.a. n.a.
Franklin County part 26,167 26,388 24,486 -0.9% 7.8%
Licking County part ) 8,826 5,681 1,281 55.4% 3435%
Richfield village 3,648 3,286 3,117 11.0% 5.4%
Richmond village 481 471 440 2.1% 7.0%
Richmond Heights city 10,646 10,944 9,611 -3.6% 13.9%
Richwood village 2,229 2,156 2,204 3.4% -2.2%
Ridgeway village 338 354 397 -4.5% -10.8%
Hardin County part 226 254 261 -11.0% -2.7%
Logan County part 112 100 136 12.0% -26.5%
Rio Grande village 830 915 965 -9.3% 5.2%
Ripley village 1,750 1,745 1,794 0.3% -2.7%
Risingsun village 608 620 665 -2.3% -6.8%
Rittman city 6,491 6,314 6,193 2.8% 2.0%
Maedina County part 116 106 166 8.5% -32.1%
Wayne County part 6,376 6,208 6,037 2.7% 2.8%
Riveriea village 545 499 490 9.2% 1.8%
Riverside city 25,201 23,545 1,471 7.0% 1600.6%
Roaming Shores village 1,608 1,239 769 21.7% 61.1%
Rochester village 182 180 196 -4.2% 3.1% .,
Rock Creek village 529 584 669 -9.4% 4.5%
Rockford village 1,120 1,126 1,119 -0.5% 0.6%
Rocky Ridge village 417 389 438 7.2% -11.2%
Rocky River city 20,213 20,735 20,410 -2.5% 1.6%
Rogers village 237 266 252 -10.9% 5.6%
Rome village 94 117 m -19.7% 5.4%
Roseville village 1,852 1,936 1,857 -4.3% 4.3%
Muskingum County part 755 765 857 -1.3% -10.7%
Perry County part 1,097 1171 1,000 -6.3% 17.1%
Rossburg village 201 224 258 -10.3% -13.2%
Rossford city 6,293 6,406 5,861 -1.8% 9.3%
Roswell village 219 276 212 -20.7% 30.2%
Rushsylvania village 516 543 561 -5.0% -3.2%
Rushville village 302 268 230 12.7% 16.5%
Russells Point village 1,391 1,619 1,504 -14.1% 7.6%
Russellville village 661 453 481 23.8% -5.8%-
Russia village 640 551 458 16.2% 20.3%
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Rutland village 393 401 463 -2.0% -13.4%
Sabina village 2,564 2,780 2,662 -7.8% 4.4%
St. Bernard city 4,368 4,924 5,344 -11.3% -7.9%
St. Clairsville city 5,184 5,057 5,162 2.5% -2.0%
St. Henry village 2,427 2,21 1,906 6.9% 19.2%
St. Louisville village 373 348 366 7.8% -6.6%
St. Martin village 129 91 121 41.8% -24.8%
St. Marys city 8,332 8,342 8,441 -0.1% -1.2%
St. Paris village 2,089 1,998 1,842 4.6% 8.5%
Salem city 12,303 12,197 12,239 0.9% -0.3%
Columbiana County part 12,299 - - n.a. n.a.
Mahoning County part 4 — -— n.a. n.a.
Salesville village 129 154 56 -16.2% 176.0%
Salineville village 1,311 1,397 1,474 -8.2% -5.2%
Sandusky city 25,793 27,844 29,764 -7.4% -6.5%
Sarahsville village 166 198 166 -16.2% 19.3%
Sardinia village 980 862 770 13.7% 11.9%
Brown County part 9280 862 -— 13.7% n.a.
Highland County part 0 0 - n.a. n.a.
Savannah village 413 372 337 11.0% 10.4%
Sclo village 763 799 813 -4.5% -1.7%
Scott village 286 322 350 -11.2% -8.0%
Paulding County part 119 118 143 0.8% -17.5%
Van Wert County part 167 204 207 -18.1% -1.4%
Seaman village 944 1,039 1,001 9.1% 3.8%
Sebring village 4,420 4,912 4,848 -10.0% 1.3%
Senecaville village 457 453 424 0.9% 6.8%
Seven Hills city 11,804 12,080 12,339 -2.3% 2.1%
Seven Mile village 751 678 792 10.8% -14.4%
Seville village 2,296 2,160 1,810 6.3% 19.3%
Shadyside village 3,785 3,675 3,934 3.0% -8.6%
Shaker Heights city 28,448 29,405 30,831 -3.3% -4.6%
Sharonville city 13,660 13,804 13,182 -1.8% 4.7%
Butler County part 2,363 2,226 1,870 6.2% 19.0%
Hamilton County part 11,197 11,678 11,312 -3.3% 2.4%
Shawnee village 655 608 770 7.7% -21.0%
Shawnee Hills village 681 419 416 62.5% 0.7%
Sheffield village 3,982 2,949 1,943 36.0% 51.8%
Sheffield Lake city 9,137 9,371 9,825 -2.5% -4.6%
Shelby city 9,317 9,821 9,664 -5.1% 2.7%
Sherrodsville village 304 316 290 -3.8% 9.0%
Sherwood village 827 801 833 3.2% -3.8%
Shiloh village 649 721 785 -10.0% -8.2%
Shreve village 1,514 1,682 1,684 4.3% 0.1%
Sidney city 21,229 20,211 18,710 5.0% 8.0%
Silver Lake village 2,519 3,019 3,052 -16.6% -1.1%
Silverton city 4,788 5,178 5,869 -7.5% -11.6%
Sinking Spring village 133 158 206 -15.8% -23.3%
Smithfield village 869 867 705 0.2% 23.0%
Smithville village 1,252 1,333 1,364 -6.1% -1.6%
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Change Change
Name 2010 2000 1990 2000 to 2010 1990 to 2000
Solon city 23,348 21,802 18,648 71% 17.5%
Somerset village 1,481 1,549 1,390 -4.4% 11.4%
Somerville village 281 294 292 -4.4% 0.7%
South Amherst village 1,688 1,863 1,765 -9.4% 5.6%
South Bloomfield village 1,744 1179 900 47.9% 31.0%
South Charleston village 1,693 1,850 1,626 -8.5% 13.8%
South Euclid city 22,295 23,637 23,866 -5.3% -1.4%
South Lebanon village 4,115 2,538 2,696 62.1% 5.9%
South Point village 3,958 3,742 3,837 5.8% -2.5%
South Russell village 3,810 4,022 3,402 -5.3% 18.2%
South Salem village 204 213 223 -4.2% -45%
South Solon village 366 405 389 -12.3% 4.1%
South Vienna village 384 469 540 -18.1% -13.1%
South Webster village 866 764 794 13.4% -3.8%
South Zanesville village 1,989 1,936 1,969 2.7% 1.7%
Sparta viilage 161 191 184 -156.7% 3.8%
Spencer village 763 747 705 0.8% 6.0%
Spencerville village 2,223 2,235 2,207 -0.5% 1.3%
. Springbdio city 17,409 12,380 6,690 40.6% 87.9%
Montgomery County part 1,218 163 0 696.1% n.a.
Warren County part 16,191 12,227 6,580 32.4% 85.6%
Springdale city 11,223 10,563 10,621 6.2% -0,}5%
Springfield city 60,608 66,3568 70,487 -7.3% -1.3%
Spring Valley village 479 510 490 6.1% 41%
Stafford village 81 88 101 5.8% -14.9%
Steubenville city 18,659 19,016 22,125 -1.9% -14.1%
Stockport village 603 540 463 -6.9% 16.6%
Stone Creek village 177 184 179 -3.8% 2.8%
Stoutsville village 560 581 529 -3.6% 9.8%
Stow city 34,837 32,139 27,702 8.4% 16.0%
Strasburg village 2,608 2,310 1,995 12.9% 15,8%
Stratton village 294 277 292 6.1% -6.1%
Streetsboro city 16,028 12,311 9,932 30.2% 24.0%
Strongsville city 44,750 43,858 35,308 2.0% 24.2%
Struthers city 10,713 11,756 12,284 -8.9% -4.3%
Stryker village 1,336 1,406 1,468 -5.0% -4.2%
Sugar Bush Knolis village 177 227 218 -22.0% 4.1%
Sugarcreek village 2,220 2,174 2,062 2.1% 5.4%
Sugar Grove village 426 448 472 -4.9% -6.1%
Summerfield village 254 296 300 -14.2% -1.3%
Summitville village 135 108 143 25.0% -245%
Sunbury village 4,389 2,630 2,046 66.9% 285%
Swanton village 3,690 3,307 3,599 11.6% -8.1%,
Fulton County part 3,680 3,283 3,378 9.0% -2.8%
Lucas County part 110 24 221 368.3% -89.1%
Sycamore village 861 914 886 -5.8% 3.2%
Sylvania city 18,965 18,670 17,301 1.6% 7.9%
Syracuse village 826 879 821 -6.0% 7.1%
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Vermilion city 10,694 10,927 11,127 -3.0% -1.8%
Erie County part 4,742 4,937 5,483 -3.9% -10.0%
Lorain County part 5,852 5,990 5,644 -2.3% 6.1%
Verona village 494 430 480 14.9% -10.4%
Montgomery County part 79 55 88 43.6% -37.6%
Preble County part 415 375 392 10.7% -4.3%
Versailles village 2,687 2,589 2,351 3.8% 10.1%
Vinton village 222 324 285 -31.5% 13.7%
Wadsworth city 21,567 18,437 15,718 17.0% 17.3%
Waite Hill village 471 446 449 5.6% -0.7%
Wakeman village 1,047 951 948 10.1% 0.3%
Walbridge village 3,019 2,546 2,738 18.6% -7.0%
Waldo village 338 332 312 1.8% 6.4%
Waiton Hills village 2,281 2,400 2,3NM -5.0% 1.2%
Wapakoneta city 9,867 9,474 9,214 4.1% 2.8%
Warren city 41,557 46,832 50,793 -11.3% -7.8%
Warrensville Heights city 13,542 16,109 15,745 -10.4% -4.0%
Warsaw village 682 781 676 -12.7% 16.5%
Washington Court House city 14,192 13,524 12,983 4.9% 4.2%
Washingtonville village 801 789 915 1.5% -13.8%
Columbiana County part 453 434 489 4.4% -11.2%
Mahoning County part 348 355 426 -2.0% -16.7%
Waterville village 5,623 4,828 4,517 14.4% 6.9%
Wauseon city 7,332 7,091 6,322 3.4% 12.2%
Waverly City city 4,408 4,433 4,477 -0.6% . -1.0%
Wayne village 887 842 797 5.3% 5.6%
Wayne Lakes village 718 684 666 5.0% 2.7%
Waynesburg village 923 1,003 1,057 -8.0% -6.1%
Waynesfield village 847 803 840 5.5% -4.4%
Waynesville village 2,834 2,568 1,970 10.8% 29.8%
Wellington village 4,802 4,511 4,140 6.5% 9.0%
Waellston city 65,663 6,078 6,049 -6.8% 0.5%
Wellsville village 3,541 4,133 4,632 -14.3% -8.8%
West ngandria village 1,340 1,395 1,460 -3.9% -4.5%
West Carroliton city 13,143 13,818 14,403 -4.9% -4.1%
Waest Elkton village 197 194 214 1.5% -9.3%
Waesterville city 36,120 35,318 30,193 2.3% 17.0%
Delaware County part 7,792 5,900 1,101 32.1% 435.9%
Franklin County part 28,328 29,418 29,092 -3.7% 1.1%
West Farmington village 499 519 528 -3.9% -1.7%
Weaestfield Center village 1,115 1,054 798 6.8% 32.1%
West Jefferson village 4,222 4,331 4,505 -2.5% -3.9%
Waest Lafayette village 2,321 2,313 2,129 0.3% 8.6%
Waestlake city 32,729 31,719 27,018 3.2% 17.4%
West Leipsic village 208 271 224 -24.0% 21.0%
- West Liberty village 1,805 1,813 1,613 -0.4% 12.4%
Waest Manchester village 474 433 445 9.5% -2.7%
West Mansfield village 682 700 803 -2.6% -12.8%
Waest Millgrove village 174 78 152 123.1% -48.7%
West Milton village 4,630 4,645 4,348 -0.3% 6.8%
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Tallmadge city 17,537 16,390 14,986 7.0% 9.4%
Portage County part 280 210 -— 33.3% n.a.
Summit County part 17,257 16,180 — 6.7% n.a.
Tarlton village 282 298 302 5.4% -1.3%
Fairfield County part 0 - -— n.a. n.a.
Pickaway County part 282 — - n.a. n.a.
Terrace Park village 2,251 2,273 2,133 -1.0% 6.6%
The Village of Indian Hill city 6,785 5,907 5,383 21% 9.7%
Thornville village 991 731 752 36.6% -2.8%
Thurston village 604 565 539 8.8% 3.0%
Tiffin city 17,963 18,135 18,604 -0.9% -2.5%
Tiltonsville village 1,372 1,329 1,517 3.2% -12.4%
Timberiake village 675 775 825 -12.9% -6.1%
Tipp City city 9,689 9,221 6,027 6.1% 63.0%
Tiro village 280 281 246 -0.4% 14.2%
Toledo city 287,208 313,619 332,943 -8.4% -6.8%
Tontogany village 367 364 366 0.8% -0.3%
Toronto city 5,091 5,676 6,126 -10.3% -7.3%
Tremont City village 375 349 493 7.4% -29.2%
Trenton city 11,869 8,746 6,189 35.7% 41.3%
Trimble village 390 466 439 -16.3% 6.2%
Trotwood city 24,431 27,420 8,816 -10.9% 211.0%
Troy city 25,058 21,999 19,478 13.9% 12.9%
Tuscarawas village 1,066 934 786 13.1% 19.0%
Twinsburg city 18,795 17,006 9,606 10.5% 77.0%
Uhrichsville city 5,413 5,662 5,604 -4.4% 1.0%
Union city 6,419 5,574 5,601 16.2% 1.3%
Miami County part 24 4 - 500.0% n.a.
Montgomery County part 6,395 5,670 - 14.8% n.a.
Union City village 1,666 1,767 1,969 -5.7% -10.3%
Unionville Center village 233 299 227 -22.1% 31.7%
Uniopolis village 222 266 247 -13.3% 3.6%
University Heights city 13,539 14,148 14,790 -4.3% -4.4%
Upper Arlington city 33,771 33,686 34,128 0.3% -1.3%
Upper Sandusky city 6,596 6,633 5,906 1.0% 10.6%
Urbana city 11,793 11,613 11,353 1.5% 2.3%
Urbancrest village 960 868 870 10.6% 0.2%
Utica village 2,132 2,130 2,033 0.1% 4.8%
Knox County part 16 2 14 700.0% -85.7%
Licking County part 2,116 2,128 2,019 -0.6% 5.4%
Valley Hi village 212 244 248 -13.1% -0.8%
Valley View village 2,034 2,179 2,137 -6.7% 2.0%
Valleyview village 620 601 582 3.2% 3.3%
Van Buren village 328 313 344 4.8% -9.0%
Vandalia city 15,248 14,603 13,882 4.4% 5.2%
Vanlue village 359 3an 374 -3.2% -0.8%
Van Wert city 10,846 10,690 10,891 1.5% -1.8%
Venedocia village 124 160 144 -22.5% 11.1%
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Weston village 1,590 1,659 1,709 4.2% -2.9%
Waest Rushville village 134 132 121 1.6% 9.1%
Waest Salem village 1,464 1,501 1,534 -2.6% -2.2%
West Union village 3,241 2,903 3,096 11.6% -6.2%
Waest Unity village 1,671 1,790 1,677 -6.6% 6.7%
Wharton village 358 409 386 -12.5% 6.0%
Whitehall city 18,062 19,201 20,572 -6.9% -6.7%
Whitehouse village 4,149 2,733 2,540 51.8% 7.6%
Wickliffe city 12,750 13,484 14,558 -5.4% -7.4%
Wilkesville village 149 151 184 -1.3% -17.9%
Willard city 6,236 6,806 6,210 -8.4% 9.6%
Williamsburg village 2,490 2,358 2,322 5.6% 1.6%
Williamsport village 1,023 1,002 841 2.1% 19.1%
Willoughby city 22,268 22,621 20,610 -1.6% 10.3%
Willoughby Hills city 9,485 8,595 8,427 10.4% 2.0%
Willowick city 14,171 14,361 15,269 -1.3% -5.9%
Willshire village 397 463 554 -14.3% -16.4%
Wilmington city 12,520 11,921 11,199 5.0% 6.4%
Wilmot village 304 335 261 -9.3% 28.4%
Wilson village 125 118 132 5.9% -10.6%
Belmont County part 37 37 22 0.0% 68.2%
Monroe County part 88 81 110 8.6% -26.4%
Winchester village 1,061 1,025 978 2.6% 4.8%
Windham village 2,209 2,806 3,066 -21.3% -85%
Wintersville village 3,924 4,067 4,102 -3.5% -0.9%
Woodlawn village 3,284 2,816 2,674 17.0% 5.3%
Woodmere village 884 828 818 6.8% 1.2%
Woodsfield village 2,384 2,598 2,832 -8.2% -8.3%
Woodstock village 305 317 268 -3.8% 18.3%
Woodbville village 2,136 1,977 1,963 8.0% 1.2%
Wooster city 26,119 24,811 22,191 5.3% 11.8%
Worthington city 13,675 14,125 14,882 -3.9% 5.1%
Wren village 194 199 186 -2.5% 7.0%
Wyoming city 8,428 8,261 8,128 2.0% 1.6%
Xenia city 25,719 24,164 24,664 6.4% -2.0%
Yankee Lake village 79 99 84 -20.2% 17.9%
Yellow Springs village 3,487 3,761 3,972 -7.3% -6.3%
Yorkshire village 96 110 95 -12.7% 15.8%
Yorkville village 1,079 1,230 1,261 -12.3% -2.5%
Belmont County part 464 538 498 -13.8% 8.0%
Jefferson County part 616 692 763 -11.1% -9.3%
Youngstown city 66,982 82,026 95,732 -18.3% -14.3%
Mahoning County part 66,971 82,026 95,706 -18.4% -14.3%
Trumbull County part 1 0 26 n.a. -100.0%
Zaleski village 278 375 302 -25.9% 24.2%
Zanesfield village 197 220 180 -10.5% 22.2%
Zanesville city 25,487 25,586 26,778 -0.4% -4.5%
Zoar village 169 193 170 -12.4% 13.5%

n.a. - Could not caiculste. Division by zero.
Source: Census 2010, U.S. Census Bureau.

Prepared by: Office of Policy, R

ing, Ohio Department of Development.
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Personnel Costs
Total Personnel Costs

Contracts & Materials
Postage and Mailing
Other Professional Services
Miscellaneous
Supplies and Materials
Total Contracts and Materials

Total Budget

City of Dayton
Income Tax Budget
2010, 2011 and 2012

2010 2011 2012
$ 582,673.04 $ 582,673.04 $ 642,847.08
$ 21,800.00 $ 21,800.00 $ 15,200.00
$ 343,000.00 $ 213,000.00 $ 310,000.00
$ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00
$ 5,600.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
$ 370,900.00 $ 237,300.00 $ 327,700.00
$ 953,573.04 $ 819,973.04 $ 970,547.08
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City of Dayton Balance Sheets for 2008, 2009 and 2010

CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Capital Gover tal Gover I

General Debt Service Improvement Funds Funds

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents . . . . . $ 40,384,697 § 15,502,614 § 13,884,843 § 16,424,603 $ 86,196,757
INVEStMENES i « wwon v s w w3 & s @ 6 - - - 77,085 77,085
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Property and other local taxes . . . . . ... ... 12,483,649 12,445,095 - - 24,928,744

Municipal incometaxes. . . . . ... ...... 15,900,309 - - - 15,900,309

(ACCOTS e o oot Hooms 051G F4650 NGt 3 3,888,246 - 9,786 66,399 3,964,431

Special assessments. . . . . .. ... ...... 603,515 582,638 - 275,951 1,462,104

Accruedinterest . . . . . .. ... ... .... 972,746 20,366 17,550 15,729 1,026,391

Loans. .. .................... - 26,260,000 - - 26,260,000

Interfundloans. . . . . .. ........... 726,399 - - - 726,399

Prepayments.. . . . .. ... ........... 340,001 - 12,510 - 352,511
Due fromotherfunds . . . . . ... ... ... .. 29,284 - - 78,870 108,154
Due from other governments . . . . . . ... ... 8,236,237 533,546 9,971,610 5,608,978 24,350,371
Advances to componentunit . . . . ... ... .. - - 5,393,043 5,683,600 11,076,643
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal and escrow agents . . . . . . . . - 484,866 - - 484,866
Total'assets » sovs w o % 5 24 5 & 80 £ WEW ¥ $ 83,565,083 $ 55829125 § 20289342 § 28231215  $ 196,914,765
Liabilities:

Accountspayable. . . . ... ........... $ 1422563 $ 948 § 1,290,828  § 347369 $ 3,061,708
Contractspayable . . . . ... ......... .. 335,082 2,880 1,470,558 712,354 2,520,874
Accrued wages and benefits. . . . ..., ... .. 4,388,175 2,601 28,344 391,749 4,810,869
Compensated absences payable. . . . . ... .. . 486,454 - - 64,771 551,225
Retainage payable. . . . ... ........ ... - - 1,325,324 - 1,325,324
Interfund loans payable . . . . ... ... .. ... - - - 326,399 326,399
Ductootherfunds . . . ... ........... 202,313 - 27,945 16,634 246,892
Due to other governments . . . . . . .. ... ... 5,920,408 - - 4,701 5,925,109
Claimants payable. . . . . ... ..... ..... 25,577 - - - 25,577
Pollution remediation obligation. . . . . . ... ... - - 1,430,000 - 1,430,000
Voluntary termination benefits. . . . . . ... ... 442,339 - - 57,384 499,723
Deferredrevenue . . . . .. ... ......... 17,258,759 4,084,624 7,314,493 4,403,409 33,061,285
Unearmedrevenue . . . . . .. ... ... .. ... 9,489,109 9,489,109 - - 18,978,218
Total liabilities . . . . ... ..... ... ..... 39,970,779 13,580,162 12,887,492 6,324,770 72,763,203
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances. . . . .. ... ... .. 1,703,624 45,564 21,815,726 15,360,536 38,925,450
Reserved for prepayments . . . . .. ... ... .. 340,001 - 12,510 - 352,511
Reserved forclaims. . . . . .. ... ... ... .. 375,130 - - - 375,130
Reserved for advances to component unit. . . . . . . - - 5,393,043 5,683,600 11,076,643
Reserved for debtservice. . . . . . . ... ... .. - 15,943,399 - - 15,943,399
Reserved for contributions to permanent fund . . . . - - - 102,228 102,228
Reserved forloans . . . .. ... .. ... ... .. - 26,260,000 - - 26,260,000
Unreserved, designated for various projects, reported in:
QGefieralifund s « v & v o % e en 2 Y G @ e 10,172,634 - - - 10,172,634
Special revenue funds. . . . . . ... .. ..... - - - 1,116,000 1,116,000
Unreserved, undesignated (deficit), reported in:
General fund: . oo v o s s o e s 31,002,915 - - - 31,002,915
Special revenue funds . . . .. ... ... ... - - - (416,332) (416,332)
Permanent fund. . « o < & s o0 5 v wios « o - - - 60,413 60,413

Capital projects funds . . . . . . .. .. ... - - (10,819,429) - (10,819,429)
Total fund balances . . . . .. ........... 43,594,304 42,248,963 16,401,850 21,906,445 124,151,562
Total liabilities and fund balances. . . . . . .. .. $ 83565083 § 55,829,125 $ 29289342 § 28231215 $ 196,914,765

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F32
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CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

Other Total
Capital Gover I Gover I

General Debt Service Improvements Funds Funds

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents. . . . . $ 30231610 $ 15576635 $§ 1,231,530 $ 16,195,183 § 63,234,958
INVESTMENtS o oo % sonn w6 wimw v B s & W % - - - 93,150 93,150
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Property and other local taxes . . . . . ... ... 11,217,134 11,181,759 - - 22,398,893

Municipal income taxes . . . . .. ... ... .. 15,287,978 - - - 15,287,978

ACCOUNES: &:io = worere & aviane & aviis % & svas & 3,713,707 25,000 60,466 153,862 3,953,035

Special assessments. . . . ... ... ... ... 159,640 787,825 - 254918 1,202,383

Accrued Interest’ . .. « « w5 5 s ¥ ws 4 484,686 12,541 9428 8,513 515,168

LOMS: coum i mumme » somes @ e % 5 05 B @ § - 25,700,000 - - 25,700,000

Interfund 10808 ... « vovse v 5o & s 5 = we 1,797,311 - - - 1,797,311

Due fromotherfunds . . . . . . ... ..... .. 47,909 - 2,506 9,912 60,327
Due from other governments . . . . . .. ... .. 7,187,570 533,207 17,811,918 7,245,969 32,778,664
Prepayments.. . . .. ... ............ 410,916 - 11,941 786 423,643
Advances fromotherfunds. . . . . ... ... .. - 912,306 - - 912,306
Advances to component unit . . . . . . ... ... - - 5,393,043 7,801,264 13,194,307
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal and escrow agents . . . . . . . . - 1,891 - - 1,891
Totalassets . . . .. ................ $ 70538461 $ 54731164 $ 24520832 § 31,763,557 _$ 181554014
Liabilities:

Accountspayable. . . ... ... ... ... .. $ 992,458 § 7,684 $ 13,087 § 238982 $§  1,252211
Contracts payable . . . . .. ............ 700,445 - 1,811,219 2,893,890 5,405,554
Accrued wages and benefits. . . . . ... ... .. 3,267,803 2,038 7,392 160,648 3,437,881
Retainage payable. . . . . ............. - - 2,760,243 21,459 2,781,702
Interfund loans payable . . . . . ... ... ... - - - 1,397,311 1,397,311
Duetootherfunds . . ... ........ .. .. 78,285 3,247 1,907 40,051 123,490
Due to other governments . . . . . . ... ... .. 5,745,215 - - - 5,745.215
Claimants payable. . . . ... ........... 3,647 - - - 3,647
Deferred revenitic's .« = «wvv « v s & s % @ 15,080,491 3,698,446 14,935,358 3,494,035 37,208,330
Unearnedireventie.. . . . . . 4 oouv v vos s o oa 8,831,703 8,831,703 - - 17,663,406
Total liabilities': < vuice o weme 5 wavs v w s v 34,700,047 12,543,118 19,529,206 8,246,376 75,018,747
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances. . . . . . ... .. ... 3,027,913 39,491 20,728,704 23,812,974 47,609,082
Reserved for prepayments . . . . .. ... ... .. 410,916 - 11,941 786 423,643
Reserved forclaims: .« .« ¢ ovas 5 wown v o s 132,987 - - - 132,987
Reserved foradvances. . . . ... ... ... ... - 912,306 - - 912,306
Reserved for advances to component unit. . . . . . . - - 5,393,043 7,801,264 13,194,307
Reserved for debt service. . . . . ... ....... - 15,536,249 - - 15,536,249
Reserved for contributions to permanent fund . . . . - - - 102,228 102,228
Reservedforloans . . . ... ............ - 25,700,000 - - 25,700,000
Unreserved, designated for various projects, reported in:
Generalfund. . . .. ............... 6,585,539 - - - 6,585,539
Special revenue funds. . . . . ... ... ... .. - - - 398,848 398,848
Unreserved, undesignated (deficit), reported in:
Gentralfund. . = & 0.9 5 e 5 Sl & Sosee 25,681,059 - - - 25,681,059

Special revenue funds . . . . . ... ... ... - - - (8,675,221) (8,675,221)

Permanentfund .. & vosi s 6o 5 v s s - - - 76,302 76,302

Capital projects funds . . . . ... ....... - - (21,142,062) - (21,142,062)
Total fundbalances . . . ... ........... 35,838,414 42,188,046 4,991,626 23,517,181 106,535,267
Total liabilities and fund balances . . . . . . .. .. $ 70538461 $ 54731164 § 24520832 § 31,763,557 $ 181,554,014

— —

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents . .
Cash with fiscal and escrow agents. . . . . . .
Investments:ox 5 s5% v e % S i G
Receivables:

Property and other local taxes. . . . . . . ..

Municipal income taxes. . . . . ... .. ..

Payments in lieuoftaxes . . . .. ... ...

Special assessments . . . ... ... ...
Accruedinterest ...y oo v v v g
Loans receivable. . . . . ... ... ... .
Interfundloans. . . . .. ..........
Due fromother funds . . . . .. ... ...
Due from other governments. . . . . . . . .
Prépayiientst.. . oo o s o won v @ sa s
Advances tootherfunds. . . . .. ... ...

Advances to component unit. .. . . ... ...
TORLASEEE s v v s i wvo o 3 w2 oo

Liabilities:
Accounts payable. . . . .. ... .......
Contracts payable. . . . . ... ........
Accrued wages and benefits payable . . . . . .
Retainage payable . . . . ... ... ... .
Interfund loans payable. . . . . ... ... ..

Comp d ab payable . . . ... ..
Duetootherfunds. . . . .. ... ......
Due to other governments . . . . . . ... ..

Claimants payable . . . . .. ... .......

Deferredrevenue . . . . . . .. ........

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances . . . . ... ...
Reserved for prepayments . . . . . . .. ...
Reserved forclaims. . . ... ... .. ...

Reserved for advances to component unit. . . .

Reserved for debt service. . . . . .. ... ..
Reservedforloans. . . . ... ........
Reserved for contributions to permanent fund .
Unreserved:
Designated for various projects, reported in:
Generalfund. . . . ... ... ......
Undesignated (deficit), reported in:
Generalfund. . . . . ... ........
Special revenue funds. . . . . .. .. ..
Permanentfund. . . . .. ... .. ...
Capital projects funds . . . . . ... ...
Total fund balances. . . .. ...........

Total liabilities and fund balances . . . . . . . .

CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Other Total
Debt Capital Gover tal  Gover tal
General Service Improvement Funds Funds
$ 27,090,186 § 17,157,832 § 649,505 § 14,797,856 $ 59,695,379
250 - - - 250
- - - 86,771 86,771
10,156,170 10,128,094 - - 20,284,264
15,217,177 - - - 15,217,177
3,989,804 18,750 15,219 82,977 4,106,750
- - 1,032,671 - 1,032,671
172,245 632,086 - 346,895 1,151,226
210,282 5,668 - 6,335 222,285
- 24,460,000 7,085,904 6,375,620 37,921,524
4,259,446 - - - 4,259,446
6,790 - . 77,5417 84,331
7,286,450 537,150 15,493 444 7,570,793 30,887,837
511,441 - 5,317 5,302 522,060
- 933,540 - - 933,540
- - 967,932 8,133,600 9,101,532
$_068900241  $ 53873120 _§ 25249992 _$ 37483.690. _$ 185507,043
$ 2844650 § 10959 § 715334  § 236332 § 3807275
480,215 - 354,175 1,799,324 2,633,714
3,448,395 2,556 11,854 229,396 3,692,201
- - 1,420,091 78,317 1,498,408
- - - 3,776,871 3,776,871
12,327 - - - 12,327
122,860 13 24,995 15,360 163,228
5,569,369 - - - 5,569,369
15,470 - - - 15,470
14,483,501 4,002,611 12,521,305 3,168,139 34,175,556
1,315,770 7,315,770 646,170 - 15,277,710
34,292,557 11,331,909 15,693,924 9,303,739 70,622,129
2,477,421 54,965 20,125,237 36,431,106 59,088,729
511,441 - 5317 5,302 522,060
142,262 - - - 142,262
- 933,540 - - 933,540
- - 967,932 8,133,600 9,101,532
- 17,092,706 - - 17,092,706
- 24,460,000 7,085,904 6,375,620 37,921,524
- - - 102,228 102,228
5,322,656 - - - 5,322,656
26,153,904 - - - 26,153,904
- - - (22,938,155) (22,938,155)
- - - 70,250 70,250
- - (18,628,322) - (18,628,322)
34,607,684 42,541,211 9,556,068 28,179,951 114,884,914
$ 68900241  § 53873120 8§ 25249992 $ 37.483600 _$ 185507,043

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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City of Dayton Income Statements for 2008, 2009 and 2010

CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Capital Gover tal Gover tal
General Debt Service Improvement Funds Funds
Revenues:
Municipal income taxes. . . . . ... ... .. $ 109,008,881 $ - 3 - 3 - $ 109,008,881
Property and other taxes . . . . ... .. ... 9,890,704 9,870,203 1,355,313 - 21,116,220
State sharedtaxes. . . . ... ......... 16,252,571 - - 6,136,936 22,389,507
Charges forservices . . . . ... ....... 22,900,500 - 89,219 936,730 23,926,449
Licensesandpermits . . . . . . ... ... .. 1,803,864 - 10,699 2,590 1,817,153
Fines and forfeitures . . . . . ... ... ... 1,805,640 - - 1,103,221 2,908,861
Intergovernmental . . . .. ... ... .. .. 1,314,139 1,089,139 9,727,400 13,577,070 25,707,748
Special assessments . . . . ... ... L L. 286,250 162,985 12,329 84,483 546,047
Investmentincome . . . . . ... .. ..... 4,061,572 90,752 70,906 63,521 4,286,751
Increase (decrease) in FMV of investments. . . 577,390 18,974 16,352 (13,231) 599,485
Other e » o 5 vame 8 & B3y RA060E & 48 5,111,371 236,802 4,107,744 2,433,184 11,889,101
Totalrevenues oo & was 5 9ot & o5 & 173,012,882 11,468,855 15,389,962 24,324,504 224,196,203
Expenditures:
Current:
DOWROWR s & svos & sieis 7 oS & moie s & 3,729,197 560,000 - 315,000 4,604,197
Youth, education and human services. . . . . . 128,532 - - 2,452,915 2,581,447
Community development and neighborhoods. . 14,524,168 - 13,532 6,443,902 20,981,602
Economic development. . . . . . ... .. .. 3,607,301 - 1,960,529 5,623,454 11,191,284
Leadership and quality of life. . . . .. . ... 28,046,613 - 14,412 13,615,278 41,676,303
Corporate responsibility. . . . . .. ... ... 15,005,722 - - 1,396,048 16,401,770
Public safety and justice . . . ... ...... 96,101,123 - - 3,908,428 100,009,551
OMBEL v proriia o Booie EARIOR © MEEulos & S5 685,888 - - - 685,888
Capitaloutlay . . . ... ............ - - 24,852,628 - 24,852,628
Debt service:
Principal retirement . . . . . ... ... ... - 6,151,464 - 501,000 6,652,464
Interest and fiscal charges. . . . . ... ... - 4,707,848 - - 4,707,848
Bond issuancecosts . . . . . ... ... ... - 598,836 - - 598,836
Total expenditures . . . . . ... ........ 161,828,544 12,018,148 26,841,101 34,256,025 234,943,818
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures . . . . . . . . . 11,184,338 (549,293) (11,451,139) (9,931,521) (10,747,615)
Other financing sources (uses):
Saleofbonds. . ... ..... ..... ... - 24,125,480 7,874,520 - 32,000,000
Loan'proceeds:iv: v o5 5 @ 5% 5 8 5 s - - 239,750 - 239,750
Discount on bond issuance. . . . . . .. ... - (348,901) - - (348,901)
Transfersin = % v o2 2 ¢ sww v s 5 5 - 344,798 1,720,000 7,766,407 9,831,205
TranSfersiout: «s « v oo v v sven @ v & (9,556,407) - - - (9,556,407)
Total other financing sources (uses) . . . . . . . (9,556,407) 24,121,377 9,834,270 7,766,407 32,165,647
Net change in fund balances. . . . . .. .. .. 1,627,931 23,572,084 (1,616,869) (2,165,114) 21,418,032
Fund bal at beginning of year (r d). 41,966,373 18,676,879 18,018,719 24,071,559 102,733,530
Fund balances atend of year. . . . . ... .. $ 43594304 $42248963 § 16,401,850 $ 21906445 $ 124,151,562

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
Other Total
Capital Gover tal  Gover tal
General Debt Service _Impro t Funds Funds
Revenues:
Municipal income taxes. . . . . . ....... $ 9983145 § - $ - $ - $ 99,831,456
Property and othertaxes . . . . ........ 9,880,083 9,296,628 1,106,009 - 20,282,720
State sharedtaxes. . . . .. .......... 13,222,031 - - 5,674,831 18,896,862
Charges forservices . . . .. ......... 23,368,644 - 324,881 1,344,208 25,037,733
Licensesandpermits. . . . . ......... 1,585,081 - 36,156 9,082 1,630,319
Fines and forfeitures. . . . ... ....... 1,604,520 - - 501,669 2,106,189
Intergovernmental . . . ... ... ...... 1,097,695 1,050,358 18,114,720 19,436,678 39,699,451
Special assessments . . . ... ........ 189,434 117,652 12,800 102,722 422,608
Investmentincome. . . . ... ... ..... 2,788,668 57,832 42,617 38,540 2,927,657
Decrease in FMV of investments. . . . . ... . (1,043,330) (22,519) (19,018) 997) (1,085,864)
ORBBEL. & soonions o 5 cwsmsm 0 3 & 5 oameime & 5 138,078 100,000 2,562,915 1,847,492 4,648,485
Total'revenies:svin 5 & v vian s & 5 & & S 152,662,360 10,599,951 22,181,080 28,954,225 214,397,616
Expenditures:
Current:
DOWHIOWR 1+ coome 3 » & v v & & @ swese 3,537,383 560,000 46,405 - 4,143,788
Youth, education and human services. . . . . . 34,129 - 24,984 2,221,124 2,280,237
Community development and neighborhoods. . 12,982,602 - 593,719 8,683,280 22,259,601
Economic development. . . ... ... .... 3,823,697 13 6,417,920 4,806,270 15,047,900
Leadership and quality of life. . . . . ... .. 24,215,492 - 5,202,610 11,573,309 40,991,411
Corporate responsibility. . . . . ... ..... 14,648,932 495,335 890 1,980,002 17,125,159
Public safety and justice . . . ......... 90,866,260 - 27,377 4,347,213 95,240,850
Copitaloutlay s v.aivii 2 % 5 88505 3% & 5 v - - 34,887,179 21,459 34,908,638
Debit service:
Principal retirement . . . .. ......... - 6,542,380 10,842 1,494,000 8,047,222
Interest and fiscal charges. . . . . ... ... - 3,498,169 59,621 - 3,557,790
Bond issuancecosts. . . ... ... ... .. - 586,476 - - 586,476
Total expenditures . . . .. ........... 150,108,495 11,682,373 47,271,547 35,126,657 244,189,072
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures . . . . . .. .. 2,553,865 (1,082,422) (25,090,467) (6,172,432) (29,791,456)
Other financing sources (uses):
Saleofbonds: . .v vwnis v s s v ow w4 - 22,337,868 12,070,243 - 34,408,111
Payment to refund bond escrow agent . . . . . - (22,528,097) - - (22,528,097)
Premium on bond issuance. . . . . ... ... - 311,474 - - 311,474
Tramsletslty o x v 5 v o 5 5 v sy 804,913 56,677 1,610,000 9,346,913 11,818,503
TransterSont oo 5 5 ¢ s & 5 ¥ 8 vy (11,114,668) - - (1,563,745) (12,678,413)
Total other financing sources (uses) . . . . . . . (10,309,755) 177,922 13,680,243 7,783,168 11,331,578
Net change in fund balances. . . . ... .... (7,755,890) (904,500) (11,410,224) 1,610,736 (18,459,878)
Fund bal at beginning of year (r d). 43,594,304 43,092,546 16,401,850 21,906,445 124,995,145
Fund balances atend of year. . . . ... ... $ 35,8381414 $ 42,188,046 $§ 4,991,626 $ 23,517,181 § 106,535,267

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Municipal income taxes. . . . ... ... ..
Property and other taxes. . . . . ... .. ..
State sharedtaxes. . . .. ... .......
Charges for services. . . . . ... ......
Licensesand permits . . . . ... ... ...
Fines and forfeitures . . . . ... ... ...
Intergovernmental. . . . . .. .. ... ...
Special assessments . . . . ... ... L.
Investment income. . . . ... ... .....
Payments in lieuof taxes. . . . . . . ... ..
Increase (decrease) in FMV of investments . .
(6,1, SOl

Expenditures:
Current:
DOWDLOWDY 1 5 i & sond & s 5 e
Youth, education and human services. . . . . .
Community development and neighborhoods. .
Economic development. . . . . .. ... ...
Leadership and quality of life. . . . . . . ...
Corporate responsibility. . . . . .. ... ...
Public safety and justice. . . . ... ... ..
Capitaloutlay wos 4 v 5 vae % 8 in & 4
Debt service:
Principal retirement . . . . . . ... ... ..
Interest and fiscal charges. . . . . ... ...
Bond issuance costs. . . .. ... ... ...
Total expenditures . . . . . ... .........

/d,

ficiency of
over/under expenditures. . . . ... ... ...

o
E:

Other financing sources (uses):
BONd:SSUANCE.. ..os 5 o » st 5 o e &
TIANSTEISUN o o s 5 B & & aorom 3 ssos
Transfers(out). . . .. ... .........
Premium (di ) on bond issuance . . . . .
Loanissuance . . .. .............

Fund balances at beginning of year . . . . ..

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Other Total
Debt Capital Gover tal Gover tal
General Service Improvement Funds Funds

$ 98,824,027 § - 8 - 3 - $ 98,824,027
8,933,194 8,425,614 514,880 - 17,873,688
14,456,090 - - 5,600,029 20,056,119
25,345,718 - 27,432 892,720 26,265,870
1,189,378 - 29,578 96,000 1,314,956
1,451,898 - - 824,958 2,276,856
1,013,517 1,054,810 20,682,151 28,246,079 50,996,557
156,559 141,601 12,605 70,002 380,767
1,417,441 499,834 - 8,802 1,926,077

- - 1,039,654 - 1,039,654

55,874 1,357 - (6,417) 50,814
3,068,249 139,028 4,375,935 1,922,833 9,506,045
155,911,945 10,262,244 26,682,235 37,655,006 230,511,430
3,549,220 560,000 6,473 1,889 4,117,582
40,130 - - 2,472,481 2,512,611
11,993,079 - 284,171 14,595,907 26,873,157
3,202,710 - 9,018,230 1,679,829 13,900,769
25,598,035 - 1,973,535 13,776,280 41,347,850
13,632,637 75,419 320 1,828,540 15,536,916
89,644,301 - - 6,053,891 95,698,192
- - 18,169,380 56,858 18,226,238

- 8,030,000 - - 8,030,000

- 3,828,281 - - 3,828,281

- - 95,093 41,975 137,068
147,660,112 12,493,700 29,547,202 40,507,650 230,208,664
8,251,833 (2,231,456) (2.864,967) (2,852,644) 302,766

- - 2,680,000 2,500,000 5,180,000

69,863 2,584,621 4,615,530 5,211,025 12,481,039
(9,552,426) - (2,774,414) (161,202) (12,488,042)
- - 48,293 (34,409) 13,884

- - 2,860,000 - 2,860,000
(9,482,563) 2,584,621 7,429,409 7,515,414 8,046,881
(1,230,730) 353,165 4,564,442 4,662,770 8,349,647
35,838414 42,188,046 4,991,626 23,517,181 106,535,267
$ 34607684 $ 42541211 $ 9556068 $ 28179951 $ 114884914

Fund balances atend of year . ........

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F34

Page 5-G3



City of Dayton Cash Flow Statements for 2008, 2009 and 2010

Operating revenues:
Charges for services . .

Total operating revenues .

Operating expenses:
Personal services . . .
Benefit payments . . .
Contractual services. .
Materials and supplies
Utilities<: = oo o ws
Costof sales . . . . .
Depreciation . . . . .
Claims: s i o

Total operating expenses.

Operating income (loss) .

CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Business-type Activities -

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest revenue . . . .

Increase in fair market value of investments. . . . . .
Loss on disposal of capital assets . . . . ... ...
Interest expense and fiscal charges . . . . . . ... .

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) . . . . . . . .

Income (loss) before capital contributions

and transfers . . . . . .

Capital contributions . .

Transfersin. . . . . . .

Changes in net assets . .

Net assets, January 1 (Restated). . . . ........

Net assets, December 31

Dayton
_International Airport _ Water Sewer

............... $ 24,199,137 $ 45,382,902 29,612,848
............... 6,868,281 3,561,718 785,309
............... 31,067,418 48,944,620 30,398,157
............... 9,179,423 15,395,093 7,328,269
............... 2,723,465 5,170,299 2,125,066
............... 3,662,022 3,685,395 6,800,395
............... 932,089 6,008,238 2,119,791
............... 1,832,641 6,729,124 3,692,392
............... 8,973,698 6,343,172 7,463,018
............... 2,568.210 2,426,838 670,923
............... 29,871,548 45,758,159 30,199,854
ok DAR & waed g 43 1,195,870 3.186.461 198,303
............... 1,566,398 841,141 -
224,033 132,648 -

(29,828) (239,581) (284,086)
(2.211477) - (455,715)
(450,874) 734,208 (739,801)
............... 744,996 3,920,669 (541,498)
............... 21,316,626 - -
................ 22,061,622 3,920,669 (541,498)
223,193,483 157,666,391 106,939,073

............... $ 245,255,105 $ 161,587,060 106,397,575

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds.

Changes in net assets of business-type activities.

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 9,942,858 $ 109,137,745 $ 15,716,125
36,994 11,252,302 5,862
9.979.852 120,390,047 15,721,987
3,777,897 35,680,682 4,323,961
1,020,447 11,039,277 1,240,703
1,701,659 15,849,471 1,186,231
684,555 9,744,673 311,300
210,017 12,464,174 25,465
- - 5,688,598
619,065 23,398,953 100,819
- - 1,380,896
243,529 5,909,500 38,567
8,257,169 114,086,730 14,296,540
1,722,683 6,303,317 1,425,447
- 2,407,539 -
- 356,681 -
- (553,495) -
(64,535) (2,731,727) s
(64,535) (521,002) -
1,658,148 5,782,315 1,425,447
- 21,316,626 -
- - 70,000
(344,798) (344,798) 5
1,313,350 26,754,143 1,495,447
20,434,527 6,426,715
$ 21,747,877 $ 7,922,162
459,157
S 27213300
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CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

Business-type Activities -

Dayton
International Airport Water Sewer

Operating revenues:

Charges forservices. . . . . ............ $ 24,943,894 $ 45,148,024 30,527,482

Other. . .. . ... ... ... ... 5,712,056 2,595,726 471,257
Total operatingrevenues. . . . . .. ......... 30,655,950 47,743,750 30,998,739
Operating expenses:

Personal services . . . . . . ... ......... 8,357,108 14,713,456 6,889,500

Benefitpayments . . . . . ... ... ... .... 3,069,251 5,400,719 2,505,752

Contractual services. . . . . .. .......... 12,219,435 5,784,173 8,376,418

Materials and supplies . . . ... ... ...... 716,302 4,812,093 2,298,382

THBES s 5 wovrs & s ® G @ 3 s & soow 4 1,977,538 6,238,060 2,968,559

Costofisales: - : siow 5 sk @ loid 4 Hi@d & & - - -

DEPreciation’ : = wx % 508 % § 5% & S6K & 8 9,461,860 6,450,497 7,722,188

CIAIMIS: « o w conn 5ommns » s @ o w5 8 & W » & -

OIhET s oin » s 5 wowan @ woess 3 & koo & wom 2,262,323 2,118472 697,978
Total operating expenses. . . . . ... ........ 38,063,817 45.517.470 31,458,777
Operating income (loss) . . . . . ........... (7,407,867) 2,226,280 (460.038)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

INMEYESEIEVOIUE.. ..o & oy o 5 wumeren & o & 2 961,972 454,096 -

Decrease in fair market value of investments . . . . . (490,306) (209,194) -

Interest expense and fiscal charges. . . . . .. ... (2,082,373) - (451,675)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) . . . . . . . . (1,610,707) 244,902 (451,675)
Income (loss) before capital contributions

andransfers.. . o ..ov o v 0 s @ wes E w (9,018,574) 2,471,182 (911,713)

Capital contributions . . . ... ... ........ 16,881,998 216,235 -

Transfers M 5 « s & o eerw @ s & & a6 % @ 3 149,758 261,063 104,586

TEAASIRTSIOU s & svove 9w s 3 sosssew 3 wosgis & . " -
Changesinnetassets . . . .. ............. 8,013,182 2,948,480 (807,127)
Net assets, January 1 (restated) . . .. ........ 245,255,105 161,587,060 106,397,575
Net assets, December 31. . . ... ... SR SR $ 253,268,287 $ 164,535,540 105,590,448

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds.

Changes in net assets of business-type activities.

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 42

Page 5-H3



Governmental

Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Enterprise Total Service Funds

s 10,275,606 $ 110,895,006 12,756,226
58,090 8.837,129 289,967
10,333,696 119,732,135 13,046,193
3,518,736 33,478,800 3,763,422
1,287,443 12,263,165 1,417,744
2,088,272 28,468,298 1,291,712
536,916 8,363,693 2,112,292
214,732 11,398,889 22,430

- - 1,808,931

687,355 24,321,900 101,327

- - 2,961,161

226,844 5,305,617 28917
8,560,298 123,600,362 13,507,936
1,773,398 (3.868,227) (461,743)

- 1,416,068 -

- (699,500) -

(88,570) (2,622,618) -
(88,570) (1,906,050) -
1,684,828 (5,774,277) (461,743)

- 17,098,233 -

204,231 719,638 196,949
(56.677) (56.677) Z
1,832,382 11,986,917 (264,794)
20,904,294 7,922,162

$ 22,736,676 7,657,368

(438,350)
$ 11,548,567

F 43
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CITY OF DAYTON, OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Dayton Nonmajor
International Enterprise
Airport Water Sewer Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges forservices. . . . . ....... $ 20,264,662 $ 47,002,995 32,537,923 $ 10,278,536

Other operating revenues . . . . . . ... 5,409,049 2,315,162 20,634 115,434
Total operating revenues. . . . . . .. ... 25,673,711 49,318,157 32,558,557 10,393,970
Operating expenses:

Personal services . . . ... ... ..... 7,818,095 15,167,452 6,838,923 3,648,348

Fringe Benefits. .« « v o v 5 v 5 3,063,564 5,697,885 2,557,227 1,340,663

Contractservices. . . . .. ........ 2,428,167 6,418,867 8,193,192 2,753,349

Materials and supplies. . . . . ... ... 735,419 4,137,555 2,071,656 488,412

Costiofsales: : ¢ wn s o & 5 wen % - - - -

Utilities:s « woo wom @ % s s & soms 3 1,825,150 6,538,713 2,619,519 208,155

Claimsexpense . . . .. ......... - - - -

DEPreciation. - s s « svww & s w @ 9,564,363 6,387,001 7,652,896 689,696

O s o« vy o womis % aes w swaes 2,650,638 2,489,602 681,344 263,496
Total operating expenses. . . . . . ... .. 28,085,396 46,837,075 30,614,757 9,392,119
Operating income (loss) . . . . . ...... (2,411,685) 2,481,082 1,943,800 1,001,851
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest and fiscal charges . . . . . . . . . (2,732,679) - (429,095) (80,620)

Interestincome. . . . .. ... ...... 7,999 37,265 - -

Increase in fair market value of i 5 g 41,902 14,049 - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses). . . . (2,682,778) 51,314 (429,095) (80,620)
Income (loss) before contributions and

transfers:: : «x v i i e s (5,094,463) 2,532,396 1,514,705 921,231
TEanSTEEm: .« » s » wmew ¥ oae & wom - - - 37,210
TraBSTEROUt « = cvnvn & wono » wwse » waa - - - (42,508)
Capital contributions. . . . ... ... ... 16,749,609 125,807 2,059,066 32,530
Change innetassets. . . . ......... 11,655,146 2,658,203 3,573,771 948,463
Net assets at beginning of year. . . . . . 253,268,287 164,535,540 105,590,448 22,736,676
Net assets atendof year . . . . ...... $ 264,923,433 § 167,193,743 109,164,219  § 23,685,139

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net assets of business-type activities

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F42
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Business-type

Activities Governmental

Enterprise Activities -
Funds Internal
Total Service Funds

$ 110,084,116  $ 12,960,664

7,860,279 324,218
117,944,395 13,284,882
33,472,818 3,329,928
12,659,339 1,330,586
19,793,575 1,059,962
7,433,042 1,683,409
- 2,623,983
11,191,537 21,974
« 1,157,516
24,293,956 91,435
6,085,080 35,011
114,929,347 11,333,804
3,015,048 1,951,078
(3,242,394) -
45,264 -
55,951 -
(3,141,179) -
(126,131) 1,951,078
37,210 130,000
(42,508) (117,699)
18,967,012 N
18,835,583 1,963,379
7,657,368
S o0
516,633

$ 19,352,216

F43
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Certificate of Funds from the City of Dayton for local matching funds

CERTIFICATION OF LOCAL FUNDS

March 1, 2012

I, Director of Finance of the City of Dayton, hereby certify that the City of Dayton will
have the amount of $8,000 in the General Fund and that this amount will be used as
local matching funds for the Local Government Innovation Fund Grant when it is
required.

Cheryl J. Garrett, Director of Finance
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Miami Valley Communications Council Financial History

TAB 4: FINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION

Financial History

Attached to this section are balance sheets and income statements for the Miami Valley
Communications Council for the past three fiscal years. MVCC is currently collecting from the
cight cities three years of financial history on their building inspection department expenses. This
information will be submitted separate from this grant application.

Project Funds

The type of funds being requcsted is $100,000 for a feasibility study of the consolidation of
building inspection services for eight cities. The local match would be 10% of the total project
costs provided by the Miami Valley Communications Council. Anticipated savings and service
improvements for this project will be determined by the feasibility study.
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Current Assets
10300
10401
10501
10700
10800
10900
11100
12100

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2009

PETTY CASH

5/3 CHECKING

5/3 SAVINGS ACCT
RESTRICTED CASH-TRUST FD
CASH RESTRICTED-INT TR FD
CASH - STAR OHIO

.ACCCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

INSURANCE

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment :

17100
17200
17400
17500
17600
17900
18200
18300 -
18500
18600
18700

OFFICE/VIDEO FURN & EQUIP
VEHICLES

BUILDING

BLDG/LAND IMPROVEMENTS
EQUIPMENT-GOV TECH COMM
LAND _

ACC DEPREC-MACH & EQUIP
ACC DEPREC - VEHICLES

ACC DEPREC-BUILDING

ACC DEPREC-BLDG IMPROVEM
ACC DEPREC-EQUIP GOV-TECH

Total Property and Equipment

Tbtal Assets

ASSETS

200.00
23,753.02
290,134.45
600,000.00
154,099.90
761,942.75
485,582.47

11,202.50

1,858,809.38
111,203.95
756,924.00
193,189.80
37,697.70
123,169.50
(1,636,382.00)
(97,731.00)
(380,038.00)
(130,358.00)

(18,666.00)

$

2,326,915.09

817,819.33

3,144,734.42
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2009

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

.Curnent Liabllities
20300 VENDORS $
20400 TCSU
Total Current Liabllities

Accrued Liabllitles

23100 ACCRUED PAYROLL
23300 -‘ACCRUED WORKERS' COMP
23700 ACCRUED PAID LEAVE

Total Accured Liabilities

Total Liabllities
Fund Balances
27100 CONTRIBU/DONATED CAPITAL
27400 GOV-TECH FUND
27500 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
27600 BUILDING IMPROVEMENT FUND

: Net Income
Fund Equity

Total Liabilitles & Fund Balances

215,118.34
30,933.97

246,052.31

26,813.00
14,385.18

50,667.97

91,866.15

337,918.46

16,667.00
161,501.57
2,524,535.46
154,099.90

(49,987.97)

2,806,815.96 -
$ 3,144,734.42
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Income Statement
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2009

Current Month Year to Date
© Actual Actual
Revenues
40200-01 TW- FRANCHISE FEES - MV § 433,766.77 $ 1,713,307.87
40201-01 AT&T- FRANCHISE FEES-M 41,016.01 140,918.38
40205-01 FRAN FEE REBATES MVCC (94,956.47) (371,204.93)
40300-01 INTEREST INCOME - MVCC 95.52 2,922.87
40301-01 INTEREST FF RESERVE 0.00 300.83
40400-01 OTHER INCOME - MVCC . 574.00 3,251.00
40401-01 OTHER INCOME/CODERED 0.00 41,095.00
40402-04 DAYTON PD DATA BASE 0.00 10,000.00
40404-01 AGGREGATION 4,423.12 - 4,423.12
40500-01 INTEREST-TRUST FUND 62.36 2,279.44
40601-01 AT&T-CAPITAL . ) 0.00 14,760.00
40700-01 REIMBURSEMENTS - MVCC 0.00 2,532.39
' 40701-02 REIMB: GPS SERVICES 2,262.50 15,733.97
41000-03 TRAINING/TUITION - MTA 1,580.00 42,853.50
42000-01 AFFILIATE FEES - MVCC 0.00 18,870.80
43001-04 I-NET CONNECTIONS 0.00 6,319.44
Total Revenues 388,823.81 1,648,363.68
Personnel
50100-01 FULL TIME SALARIES-ADM 81,465.12 739,932.89
50200-01 PART TIME SALARIES-ADM 5,320.62 47,052.31
50300-01 PAID LEAVE EXPENSE-ADM 541.20 541.20
50400-01 PENSION - PERS-ADM 8,396.28 109,652.56
50500-01° GROUP MEDICAL INSUR-A 7,506.49 87,614.12
50600-01 WORKERS' COMP-ADM 720.49 13,632.93
50700-01 MEDICARE -ADM 847.07 11,098.16
Total Personnel Expenses 104,797.27 1,009,524.17
. Operating Expenses
. 70200-01  PRINTING - ADM 0.00 777.80
© 70300-01 PUBLICATIONS - ADM 0.00 199.55
70400-01 MEMBERSHIPS - ADM 0.00 42,959.99
70600-01 SOFTWARE - ADM 2,623.62 6,333.98
70700-05 VIDEO CONTESTS-CABLE O 0.00 955.00
71100-01 OFFICE SUPPLIES - ADM 362.05 2,589.45
71200-04 SUPPLIES-WEB/IT 2,759.32 25,570.00
71400-01 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-AD 224.39 988.28
72100-01 BUILDING MAINTENANCE- 838.47 17,765.01
72200-01 OFF EQUIP MAINT - ADM 326.45 5,868.46
72300-04 I-NET MAINTENANCE-WEB/ 4,700.00 13,965.14
72400-05 VEHICLE MAINT-CABLE OP 111.40 3,693.53
72500-01 GROUNDS MAINT-ADM 1,625.00 12,150.00
73100-01 CONFERENCES - ADM 0.00 7,846.84
73200-01 MILEAGE - ADM 300.00 4,081.61
73700-01 ELECTRIC-ADM 1,730.88 22,991.20
73800-01 WATER/SEWER-ADM 156.37 588.77
74000-01 HOST EXPENSES - ADM 914.37 7,937.65
74500-01 TRNG/TUITION - ADM 0.00 518.00
75500-01- LEASES - ADM 864.00 5,605.92
76000-01 CONTRACTUAL - ADM 5,331.85 213,024.83
76001-02 CONTRACTUAL-TCSU FUND 0.00 115,000.00
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Income Statement

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2009

. Current Month Year to Date

B . Actual Actual
76700-01 TELEPHONE EXP - ADM 622.08 9,149.71
76800-01 POSTAGE - ADM 185.55 1,211.68
77000-01 ADVERTISING - ADM 0.00 474.15
77500-01 PROMOTIONAL - ADM 60.99 816.30
Total Expenses - 23,736.79 523,062.85
Net Income $ 260,289.75 $ 115,776.66
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Current Assets
10300
10401
10501
10700
10800
10900
11100
12100

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2010

PETTY CASH

5/3 CHECKING

5/3 SAVINGS ACCT
RESTRICTED CASH-TRUST FD
CASH RESTRICTED-INT TR FD
CASH - STAR OHIO
ACCCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
INSURANCE

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

17100
17200
17400
17500
17600
17900
18200
18300
18500
18600
18700

OFFICE/VIDEO FURN & EQUIP
VEHICLES

BUILDING

BLDG/LAND IMPROVEMENTS
EQUIPMENT-GOV TECH COMM
LAND

ACC DEPREC-MACH & EQUIP
ACC DEPREC - VEHICLES

ACC DEPREC-BUILDING

ACC DEPREC-BLDG IMPROVEM
ACC DEPREC-EQUIP GOV-TECH

Total Property and Equipment

. Total Assets

ASSETS

200.00
44,415.20
485,709.13
600,000.00
153,965.32
762,767.67
494,522.07
10,265.81

1,946,796.40
111,203.95
756,924.00
205,625.80
37,697.70
123,169.50
(1,728,273.00)
(104,423.00)
(398,961.00)
(142,230.00)

(24,770.00)

$

2,551,845.20

782,760.35

3,334,605.55 .
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. MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Balance Sheet
_ December 31, 2010

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabilities

20300 VENDORS $
20350 ENCUMBRANCES

20400 TCSU

20401 TCSU-SPEC FUND

Total Current Liabilitles

Accrued Liabilities

23100 ACCRUED PAYROLL
23300 ACCRUED WORKERS' COMP
23700 ACCRUED PAID LEAVE

Total Accured Liabllities

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
27100 CONTRIBU/DONATED CAPITAL
27400 GOV-TECH FUND -
27500 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
27600 BUILDING IMPROVEMENT FUND
Net Income
Fund Equity

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

267,020.77
10,334.00
15,206.84

37,415.70

31,253.30
15,712.44
55,539.29

16,667.00
122,816.54
2,524,853.10
142,479.32
95,307.25

329,977.31

102,505.03

432,482.34

2,902,123.21
3,334,605.55

Page 5-J7



Revenues
40200-01
40201-01
40205-01
40300-01
40400-01
40401-01
40402-04
40404-01
40500-01
40602-01
40700-01
40701-02
41000-03
42000-01
43001-04

Personnel
50100-01
50200-01
50300-01
50400-01
50500-01
50600-01
50700-01

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Income Statement

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2010

TW- FRANCHISE FEES - MV §

AT&T- FRANCHISE FEES-M
FRAN FEE REBATES MVCC
INTEREST INCOME - MVCC
OTHER INCOME - MVCC
OTHER INCOME/CODERED
DAYTON PD DATA BASE
AGGREGATION
INTEREST-TRUST FUND
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
REIMBURSEMENTS - MVCC
REIMB: GPS SERVICES
TRAINING/TUITION - MTA
AFFILIATE FEES - MVCC
I-NET CONNECTIONS

Total Revenues

FULL TIME SALARIES-ADM
PART TIME SALARIES-ADM
PAID LEAVE EXPENSE-ADM
PENSION - PERS-ADM
GROUP MEDICAL INSUR-A
WORKERS' COMP-ADM
MEDICARE -ADM

Total Personnel Expenses

Operating Expenses

.'70200-01
: 70300-01
' 70400-01
70600-01
70700-05

71100-01

71200-04
71400-01
72100-01
72200-01
72300-04
72400-05
72500-01
73100-01
73200-01
73700-01
73800-01
74000-01
74500-01
75500-01
76000-01
76001-02
76700-01

PRINTING - ADM
PUBLICATIONS - ADM
MEMBERSHIPS - ADM _
SOFTWARE - ADM'

VIDEO CONTESTS-CABLE O
OFFICE SUPPLIES - ADM
SUPPLIES-WEB/IT
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-AD
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-
OFF EQUIP MAINT - ADM
I-NET MAINTENANCE-WEB/
VEHICLE MAINT-CABLE OP
GROUNDS MAINT-ADM
CONFERENCES - ADM
MILEAGE - ADM
ELECTRIC-ADM
WATER/SEWER-ADM

HOST EXPENSES - ADM
TRNG/TUITION - ADM
LEASES - ADM
CONTRACTUAL - ADM
CONTRACTUAL-TCSU FUND
TELEPHONE EXP - ADM

Current Month Year to Date
Actual Actual
431,205.85 $ 1,755,139.21
58,390.22 209,955.61
(97,919.21) (393,019.00)
136.80 1,289.65
484.00 3,185.00
0.00 37,165.86
0.00 12,075.00
0.00 33,463.30
76.58 815.42
58,209.55 58,209.55
0.00 143.75
1,425.00 15,000.00
0.00 35,083.00 -
0.00 17,533.02
0.00 6,319.44
452,008.79 1,792,358.81
87,506.90 758,139.90
6,435.64 55,487.59
4,871.32 4,871.32
8,776.58 113,021.94
8,669.19 101,715.03
765.83 14,889.57
882.19 11,419.97
117,907.65 1,059,545.32
199.28 1,167.28
39.00 283.55
0.00 39,831.81
2,960.93 6,144.50
0.00 555.00
(357.53) 2,588.11
4,489.42 -19,098.48
87.97 757.73
5,978.47 21,257.28
18.79 5,188.89
1,288.46 5,386.28
342.79 4,188.58
2,980.00 14,045.00
128.85 1,016.91
323.15 4,000.33
1,977.71 24,907.73 -
117.27 537.93
721.49 8,075.69
0.00 595.00
0.00 2,831.07
27,698.58 210,184.66
0.00 110,000.00
936.91 9,529.57

Page: 1
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Income Statement
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2010

Current Month Year to Date

Actual Actual

76800-01 POSTAGE - ADM 30.18 920.52
77000-01 ADVERTISING - ADM 0.00 298.20
77500-01 PROMOTIONAL - ADM 68.00 3,011.90
Total Expenses 50,029.72 496,402.00

Net Income $ 284,071.42 $ 236,411.49
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Balance Sheet ‘
December 31, 2011

ASSETS

Current Assets
10300 PETTY CASH 200.00
10401 5/3 CHECKING 62,433.40
10501 5/3 SAVINGS ACCT 627,878.96
10700 - RESTRICTED CASH-TRUST FD 600,000.00
10800 CASH RESTRICTED-INT TR FD 41,143.02
10900 CASH - STAR OHIO 763,196.13
11100 ACCCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 526,466.74
12100 INSURANCE 10,631.69

Total Current Assets 2,631,949.94
Property and Equipment '
17100 ) OFFICE/VIDEO FURN & EQUIP 1,990,815.28.
17200 VEHICLES 111,203.95 .
17400 BUILDING 756,924.00
17500 BLDG/LAND IMPROVEMENTS 338,366.28
17600 EQUIPMENT-GOV TECH COMM 37,697.70
17900 LAND 123,169.50
18200 ACC DEPREC-MACH & EQUIP (1,800,375.00)
18300 ACC DEPREC - VEHICLES '(109,487.00)
18500 ACC DEPREC-BUILDING (417,884.00)
18600 ACC DEPREC-BLDG IMPROVEM (161,043.00)
18700 ACC DEPREC-EQUIP GOV-TECH (30,875.00)

_Total Property and Equipment 838,512.71

Total Assets

$

3,470,462.65
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2011 )

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .

Current Liabilities ; '
VENDORS $

20300

20350 ENCUMBRANCES
20400 TCSU

20401 TCSU-SPEC FUND

Total Current Liabilities
Accrued Liabllitles

23100 ACCRUED PAYROLL
23300 ACCRUED WORKERS' COMP
23700 ACCRUED PAID LEAVE

Total Accured Liabilities

Total Liabllities
Fund Balances ; :
27100 CONTRIBU/DONATED CAPITAL
27400 GOV-TECH FUND
27500 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE
27600 BUILDING IMPROVEMENT FUND
Net Income
Fund Equity

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

232,428.68

20,930.60
25,567.83
22,252.01

42,276.60
14,009.19

49,633.63

16,667.00
122,816.54
2,721,496.65
41,143.02

161,240.90

301,179.12

__ 10591942

407,098.54

3,063,364.11
3,470,462.65
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Revenues
40200-01
40201-01
40205-01
40300-01
40400-01
40401-01
40402-04
40500-01
40701-02
41000-03
42000-01
43001-04
45000-01

Personnel
50100-01
50200-01
50300-01
50400-01
50500-01
50600-01
50700-01

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL

Income Statement

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2011

TW- FRANCHISE FEES - MV §

AT&T- FRANCHISE FEES-M
FRAN FEE REBATES MVCC
INTEREST INCOME - MVCC
OTHER INCOME - MVCC
OTHER INCOME/CODERED
DAYTON PD DATA BASE
INTEREST-TRUST FUND
REIMB: GPS SERVICES
TRAINING/TUITION - MTA
AFFILIATE FEES - MVCC
I-NET CONNECTIONS
INSUR SETTLEMENTS

Total Revenues

FULL TIME SALARIES-ADM
PART TIME SALARIES-ADM
PAID LEAVE EXPENSE-ADM
PENSION - PERS-ADM
GROUP MEDICAL INSUR-A
WORKERS' COMP-ADM
MEDICARE -ADM

Total Personnel Expenses

Operating Expenses

70300-01
70400-01

*. 70600-01

« 70700-05
71100-01
71200-04
71400-01
72100-01
72200-01
72300-04
72400-05
72500-01
73100-01
73200-01
73700-01
73800-01
74000-01
75500-01
76000-01
76001-02
76700-01
76800-01
77000-01
77500-01
77600-01

PUBLICATIONS - ADM
MEMBERSHIPS - ADM
SOFTWARE - ADM

VIDEO CONTESTS-CABLE O -

OFFICE SUPPLIES - ADM

-SUPPLIES-WEB/IT

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES-AD
BUILDING MAINTENANCE-
OFF EQUIP MAINT - ADM
I-NET MAINTENANCE-WEB/
VEHICLE MAINT-CABLE OP
GROUNDS MAINT-ADM
CONFERENCES - ADM
MILEAGE - ADM
ELECTRIC-ADM
WATER/SEWER-ADM

HOST EXPENSES - ADM
LEASES - ADM
CONTRACTUAL - ADM
CONTRACTUAL-TCSU FUND
TELEPHONE EXP - ADM
POSTAGE - ADM
ADVERTISING - ADM
PROMOTIONAL - ADM
INSUR EXPENSES

.Current Month Year to Date
Actual Actual
448,016.54 $ 1,752,120.45
78,156.20 291,502.67
(105,234.58) (408,724.62)
47.73 751.40
103.50 5,251.98
0.00 37,845.00
0.00 12,575.00
19.57 418.24
0.00 - 1,900.00
90.00 27,685.00
0.00 19,838.95
0.00 6,319.44
0.00 41,681.97
421,198.96 1,789,165.48
101,667.91 '789,106.85
4,181.50 19,130.33
(5,905.66) (5,905.66)
8,900.30 111,506.34
10,111.97 116,860.41
42.85 13,248.42
891.44 11,210.14
119,890.31 1,055,156.83
39.00 171.60
0.00 37,660.00
226.10 9,575.50
0.00 420.00
416.94 2,279.04
526.18 25,563.56
53.44 425.68
690.53 14,745.80
0.00 3,576.83
1,033.68 5,257.40
1,162.04 5,397.87
450.00 11,200.00
0.00 127.24
456.20 '4,909.28
1,460.03 21,954.71
152.48 974.02
915.52 6,122.02
0.00 2,944.94
5,472.47 149,599.17
0.00 110,000.00
782.15 .9,168.78
(45.40) 459.68
0.00 1,089.08
63.55 163.55
0.00 12,250.00

Page: 1
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MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Income Statement
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2011

Current Month Year to Date

Actual Actual

Total Expenses 13,854.91 436,035.75
Net Income $ 287,453.74 $ 297,972.90
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Self-Score Assessment

Local Government Innovation Fund Program

Application Scoring

Lead Applicant City of Dayton, Ohio

Project Name | miami valley Uniform Income Tax Ordinance

/ Grant Application

or

Loan Application

The Local Government Innovation Fund Council
77 South High Street
P.O. Box 1001
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001
(614) 995-2292
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City of Dayton, Ohio Creating a Uniform Inqg

Local Government Innovation Fund Project Scoring Sheet

Section 1: Financing Measures

F i X Applicant Self Validated
nancing Description Criteria Max Points L o
Measures Score Score

Applicant includes financial information Applicant provides a thorough, detailed and
(i.e., service related operating budgets) complete financial information

for the most recent three years and the
three year period following the project.

Applicant provided more than minimum

may include in-kind contributions. 10-39.99% 1

Financial - o 7 requirements but did not provide additional 3 O
Inoration The financial information must be Justification or support
directly related to the scope of the
project and will be used as the cost Applicant provided minimal financial 1 O
basis for determining any savings information
resulting from the project. 5 0
A
repayment source to support loan Applicant clearly demonstrates a secondary O
Repayment | award. Secondary source can be in the repayment source.
Structure form of a debt reserve, bank Applicant does not have a secondary repayment @
participation, a guarantee from a local source. o
(Loan Only) pntity, or other collateral (i.e.,emergen
iy oy o cnirgencysons cc)._ [ 0
70% or greater 5 O
Percentage of local matching funds 40-69.99% 3 O
Local Match being contributed to the project. This
1
6

Total Section Points|

Section 2: Collaborative Measures

Collaborative " T Applicant Self Validated
Description Criteria Max Points
Measures Score Score
Applicant (or collaborative partner) is not a
county and has a population of less than 20,000 5 @
Applicant's population (or the residents
population of the area(s) served) falls X = K
within one of the listed categories as Applicant (or collaborative partner) is a county 5 O
determined by the U.S. Census Bureau. but has less than 235,000
Population :o;;::lanon”scst;nng “;'”ﬁbe 7?“":’,""7 Applicant (or collaborative partner) is not a 3 O
ythe f"m, & popt-l N Aon IStedinitng county but has a population 20,001 or greater.
application. Applications from (or
collaborating with) small communities | Applicant (or collaborative partner) is a county 3 O
are preferred. with a population of 235,001 residents or more
O
Applicant has executed partnership .
agreements outlining all collaborative More than one applicant 5 @
i ey
Participating partners and pa‘mc:paﬁan agreements
and has resolutions of support. (Note: N i
Entities i L Single applicant 1 O
Sole applicants only need to provide a
resolution of support from its governing
entity.) 5 0
Total Section Points| 10 0
2/22/12 Round1
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City of Dayton, Ohio Creating a Uniform Inqq
Local Government Innovation Fund Project Scoring Sheet

Section 3: Success Measures

Success e S i Applicant Self  Validated
Description Criteria Paints
Measures Score Score
Applicant demgnstrates asa 75% o greater 30 O
percentage of savings (i.e., actual
savings, increased revenue, or cost
Expected avoidance ) an expected return. The 25.01% to 74.99% 20 O
Return return must be derived from the
applicant's cost basis. The expected Less than 25% 10 @
return is ranked in one of the following
percentage categories: 10 0
Applicant has successfully @
impl ed, or is following project
pist Siiceass guidance from 'a shared services .model, O
for an efficiency, shared service,
coproduction or merger project in the 5 0
_past.
The project is both scalable and replicable 10 @
Applicant’s proposal can be replicated
Scalable/Replic| by other local governments or scaled |  The project is either scalable or replicable 5 O
able Proposal for the inclusion of other local
governments. Does not apply 0 O
Po 10 0
Provided 5 @
Applicant provides a documented need
Probability of ¢ s :
:: c!::e:sy ° for the project and clearly outlines the Not Provided 0 O
likelihood of the need being met.
5 0
Total Section Points 30 0

Section 4: Significance Measures

Significance e - : 3 Applicant Self Validated
Description Criteria Points Assigned
Measures Score Score
The project implements a single Project implements a recommendation from an
Performance i dit or is inf d by benchmarki 3
Audit recommendation from a performance audit or is informed by benchmarking
tmick —— audit provided by the Auditor of State | Project does not implement a recommendation
P e/mc:n oM under Chapter 117 of the Ohio Revised from an audit and is not informed by 0 @
Beiichiiakiii Code or is informed by cost benchmarkin,
Applicant clearly demonstrates economic impact 5 O
Applicant demonstrates the project will
a promote business eqviranment (i"_’" Applicant mentions but does not prove 4 @
Economic demonstrates a busme.?s relationship economic impact
Impact resulting from the project) and will
provide for community attraction (i.e., | Applicant does not demonstrate an economic 0 O
cost avoidance with respect to taxes) impact
L o E 0
The project responds to current Yes 5 @
Response to 3 > .
substantial changes in economic
Economic %
demand for local or regional No ]
Demand "
government services. 5
Total Section Points| 8
2/22/12 Round1
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City of Dayton, Ohio Creating a Uniform Inqg

Section 5: Council Measures

Council

Description Criteria Points Assigned
Measures P 8

The Applicant Does Not Fill Qut This Section; This is for the Local
Council : . e Government Innovation Fund Council only. The points for this
Preference Council Ranking for Competitive Rounds sectionis based on the applicant demonstrating innovation or
inventiveness with the project
Total Section Points (10max)
Scoring Summary
Section 1: Financing Measures 6 0
Section 2: Collaborative Measures 1 O O
Section 3: Success Measures 30 0
Section 4: Significance Measures 8 0
Total Base Points: 54 0
2/22/112 Round1
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CERTIFICATE OF CLERK OF THE COMMISSION
STATE OF OHIO,
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY, SS:
CITY OF DAYTON.

The undersigned, Clerk of the Commission of said City, hereby certifies that the foregoing

is a true and correct copy of Resolution Number 5885-12

passed as an emergency measure by the Commission of said City March 28 ,20_12 .
In Testimony Whereof, witness my hand and official seal, this Third

day of April ,20_12 .

7@,} D4 /\OM,

Clerk of the Commission of the City of Dayton, Ohio

Dayton Legal Blank. Inc.
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A RESOLUTION

Ratifying the Submission by the City Manager of Grant
Applications with the State of Ohio Local Government
Innovation Fund, and Declaring an Emergency.

WHEREAS, The State of Ohio established in its biannual budget a Local Government
Innovation Fund with an appropriation of $45 million; and

WHEREAS, Within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated
for grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies; and

WHEREAS, The City of Dayton would be the lead agency in preparing, submitting
and administering grant applications and awards from the Local Government Innovation Fund;
and

WHEREAS, First round grant applications were due on March 1, 2012, making it
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health and safety that
this resolution take effect at an early date; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF DAYTON:
Section 1. That the Commission hereby ratifies the submission by the City Manager
of grant applications with the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility

studies.

Section 2. That for the reasons set forth in the preamble hereof, the Commission
declares this resolution to be an emergency measure which shall take effect immediately upon

its adoption.
Adopted by the Commission...Mé‘f&é.j.\ ..... "78 ................ 2012
Signed by the Mayor........ Md.k&/]a? 8 ....... - ,2012
' /"} ; 4
M/%éé:(ﬂg;%;{é//
ayc ity’of Day}on, Ohio
Attest: ‘ /’ i

Q“&wav /@‘LM vder

Clerk of the Commission

Approved as to form:

Ci% Attorney i




Oh . Department of
lO Development
John R. Kasich, Governor Christiane Schmenk, Director

April 2, 2012

Cheryl Garrett
City of Dayton
101 West 3rd Street
Dayton, Ohio 45402

RE: Application Cure Letter
Dear Cheryl Garrett:

The Ohio Department of Development (Development) has received and is currently reviewing
your application for Round 1 of Local Government Innovation Fund program. During this review
Development has determined that additional information is needed for your application. The
identified item(s) requiring your attention are listed on the attached page(s). Please respond
only to the issues raised. Failure to fully address all the identified items could lead to a
competitive score reduction or ineligibility for Round 1 of the Local Government Innovation Fund
program. A written response from the applicant to this completeness review is due to
Development no later than 5:00 p.m. on April 30, 2012. Please send the response in a
single email to lgif@development.ohio.gov and include “Cure—Project Name” in the subject
line.

While this cure letter represents the additional information needed for Development review, the
Local Government Innovation Council continues to reserve the right to request additional
information about your application.

Thank you once again for your participation in Local Government Innovation program. Please
contact the Office of Redevelopment at Igif@development.ohio.gov or 614-995-2292 if you have
further questions regarding your application or the information requested in this letter.

Jrobofte

Thea J. Walsh, AICP
Deputy Chief, Office of Redevelopment
Ohio Department of Development

77 South High Street 614 | 466 2480
P.O. Box 1001 800 | 848 1300
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1001 U.S.A. www.development.ohio.gov

The State of Ohio is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider of ADA Services



Local Government Innovation Fund Completeness Review

Applicant: City of Dayton
Project Name: Miami Valley Uniform Income Tax Ordinance
Request Type: Grant

Issues for Response

1. Match
A minimum of 10% match is required for all projects. Matching funds must be 10% of the
total project cost (not 10% of the funding request). Please document your 10% match and
provide evidence of the contribution.

2. Budget
Please provide a line item budget that includes at minimum: 1) the sources of all funds being
contributed to the project include all sources—cash, in-kind, etc.; 2) the uses of all funds
(provide a line item for each use); 3) the total project costs (including the funding request
and the local match. Please be sure that all uses of funds are eligible expenses as set forth
in the program guidelines.

Example:

Collaboration Village’'s Project Budget

Sources of Funds

LGIF Request $100,000
Match Contribution (10%) $ 11,111
Total $111,111
Uses of Funds

Consultant Fees for Study $111,111
Total $111,111

Total Project Cost: $111,111

3. Partnership Agreements
Partnership agreements must be signed by all parties listed as collaborative partners.
Please provide a partnership agreement that at minimum: 1) lists all collaborative partners;
2) lists the nature of the partnership; and 3) is signed by all parties. Please note,
partnership agreements must be specific to the project for which funding is requested.



April 27,2012

Ohio Department of Development
77 South High Street

P.O. Box 1001

Columbus, OH 43216-1001

ATTN: TheaJ. Walsh, AICP
Deputy Chief, Office of Redevelopment

RE: Grant Application Cure Letter Response

Dear Ms. Walsh,

I received the Cure Letter you sent regarding additional information needed for our Miami Valley
Uniform Income Tax Ordinance grant application for a feasibility study. I had a conversation with Ms.

Denise Brooking earlier this week and she was very helpful in answering my questions and clarifying
what is needed from us. I have responded below to the four points raised in the Cure Letter.

Local Government Innovation Fund Completeness Review

Applicant: City of Dayton
Project Name: Miami Valley Uniform Income Tax Ordinance
Request Type: Grant
Issues for Response
1. Match

A minimum of 10% match is required for all projects. Matching funds must be 10% of the total
project cost (not 10% of the funding request). Please document your 10% match and provide
evidence of the contribution.

City of Dayton Response:
Anticipated Project Cost 588,000

Maich Contribution (10% of total project cost) $ 8800 (From City of Dayton General Fund)
Amount of Funds Requested 579,200




CERTIFICATION OF LOCAL FUNDS

April 27,2012

I, Director of Finance of the City of Dayton, hereby certify that the City of Dayton will have the amount
of $8,800 in the General Fund and that this amount will be used as local matching funds for the Local
Government Innovation Fund Grant when it is required.

CliwiQ Dppit? Af271fyo
Cheryl J? Garrett, Director of Finance

2. Budget
Please provide a line item budget that includes at minimum: 1) the sources of all funds being
contributed to the project. Include all sources—cash, in-kind, etc.; 2) the uses of all funds (provide a
line item for each use); 3) the total project costs (including the funding request and the local match).
Please be sure that all uses of funds are eligible expenses as set forth in the program guidelines.
Example:

Collaboration Village’s Project Budget

Sources of Funds

LGIF Request $100,000
Match Contribution (11%) $ 10.000
Total $110,000
Uses of Funds

Consultant Fees for Study $110.000
Total $110,000

Total Project Cost: $110,000



City of Dayton Response:

3.

Miami Valley Uniform Income Tax Ordinance

Sources of Funds

LGIF Request §79,200
Match Contribution (10% of total project cost) 8 8,800 (From City of Dayton General
Fund)
Total Project Cost $88,000
Uses of Funds
Legal Analysis and Ordinance Drafting 826,000
Staff Support-Taxation Consultant 823,000
Economic Analysis of Revenue and Other Effects § 8500
Technical Writing $ 7,500
Meeting Facilitation § 6,500
1T Consultant $ 5,500
Meeting Costs S 4,500
Clerical Support $ 3,250
Office Supplies $ 3.250
Total Uses of Funds $88,000
Resolutions of Support

Resolutions of support must be provided by the governing body of the main applicant and each
collaborative partner. If the collaborative partner is a private entity with no governing body, a letter
of support for the project is required.

City of Dayton Response:

4.

Main Applicant: Resolution 5885-12 in support of the grant application was approved by the Dayton
City Commission on March 28, 2012. A copy is attached.

Collaborative Partner: Resolution 2012-06 from the Miami Valley Communications Council (MVCC)
authorizing the Executive Director to file grant applications on behalf of the MVCC was approved by
MVCC on February 15, 2012. A copy is attached.

Additionally, though not specifically requested, resolutions of support from each of the eight MVCC
member cities are attached.

Partnership Agreements

Partnership agreements must be signed by all parties listed as collaborative partners. Please provide a
partnership agreement that at minimum: 1) lists all collaborative partners; 2) lists the nature of the
partnership; and 3) is signed by all parties. Please note, partnership agreements must be specific to
the project for which funding is requested.



City of Dayton Response:

The City of Dayton is the Main Applicant and the Miami Valley Communications Council (MVCC) is
the Collaborative Partner for this project. The MVCC has eight member cities that are listed in the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) as members of MVCC, the Collaborative Partner. The
MVCC through its Resolution 2012-06 has authorized its Executive Director, Mr. John K. Weithofer,
to apply for grant applications to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility
studies on behalf of the eight MVCC member cities. The City of Dayvton City Commission through its
Resolution 3885-12 has authorized its City Manager, Mr. Timothy H. Riordan, to file grant
applications with the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies. Mr.
Weithofer and Mr. Riordan have signed the MOU which is our parmership agreement. A copy of the
MOU is attached.

Thank you for the consideration of our grant application. Please contact me at (937) 333-3578 if changes,
clarifications and/or further data are required.

Sincerely,

5
insg JAur >
‘ /

Cheryl J. Garrett
Finance Director, Dayton, Ohio

Attachments

CJG/bem



CERTIFICATE OF CLERK OF THE COMMISSION

STATE OF OHIO,
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY, 58:
CITY OF DAYTON.

The undersigned, Clerk of the Commission of said City, hereby certifies that the foregoing

is a true and correct copy of Resolution Number 5885-12

passed as an emergency measure by the Commission of said City March 28 ,20 12 .
In Testimony Whereof, witness my hand and official seal, this Third

day of pri , 20

2 /

N pendsy

n of the City of §§s§m§ Ohio

Duayton Legal Blank, Inc.
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A RESOLUTION

Ratifying the Submission by the City Manager of Grant
Applications with the State of Ohio Local Government
[nnovation Fund, and Declaring an Emergency:.

WHEREAS, The State of Ohio established in its biannual budget a Local Government
Innovation Fund with an appropriation of $45 million; and

WHEREAS, Within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated
for grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies; and

WHEREAS, The City of Dayton would be the lead agency in preparing, submitting
and administering grant applications and awards from the Local Government Innovation Fund:
and

WHEREAS, First round grant applications were due on March I, 2012, making it
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health and safety that
this resolution take effect at an early date; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF DAYTON:

Section I. That the Commission hereby ratifies the submission by the City Manager
of grant applications with the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility
studies. '

Section 2. That for the reasons set forth in the preamble hereof, the Commission
declares this resolution to be an emergency measure which shall take effect immediately upon
its adoption.

IS T s (T
"Mayor pf the City of Dayjon, Ohio

Attest:

3 5 . e .
%\‘& x«ei{ii{ié‘j f\é’? AL iiééffi”‘“
Clerk of the Commission

Approved as to form:
'Y

\ ) —~ \

City Attorney




Resolution of Support from Miami Valley Communications Council

MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL
Resolution #2012-06
Local Government Innovation Fund

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO FILE GRANT
APPLICATIONS ON BEHALF OF MVCC MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio established in its biannual budget a Local
Government Innovation Fund with an appropriation of $45 million, and

Whereas, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated for
grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services,
and

Whereas, the Gov Tech committee is working on potential projects to submit for
grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund, and

Whereas, MVCC on behalf of its member cities would be the lead agency in
preparing, submitting and administering any grant applications and awards from
the Local Government Innovation Fund, and

Whereas, the first round of grant applications are due on March 1, 2012.

Now, THEREFORE, THE MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE THAT:

Section 1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized to file grant applications to
the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund on behalf of MVCC member
cities for feasibility studies on potential shared services projects.

Section 2. This resolution shall be effective upon adoption.

Approved this 15" day of February, 2012

Aftest:
‘z”’/j 4 oy
/ = ,«;?}f N 4 t?"/;, )
(L Ze@ 2. [ et
Charles Case
MVCC Chair Executive Director i
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RESOLUTIONNO. //- .2
CITY OF CENTERVILLE, OHIO

Lo

SPONSORED BY COUNCIL MEMBER M (e ON THE /9%
DAY OF  7¥/aisch ,2012. o
;

A  RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT
APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY THE MIAMI
VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF
OF ITS MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR
REGIONAL COOPERATIVE PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation
Fund with an appropriation of $45 million; and

WHEREAS, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is
allocated for grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared
services; and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council, based on
recommendations from the Gov Tech committee of City Managers, has identified
potential projects to submit for grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized
MVCC’s Executive Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the
State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of
support and partnership agreements from each participating city’s governing entity.

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPALITY OF CENTERVILLE HEREBY
RESOLVES:

SECTION 1. The Centerville City Council hereby supports the grant applications
filed by the Miami Valley Communications Council to the State of Ohio Local
Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies of regional cooperative projects
including building inspection shared services and uniformity of income tax ordinance
provisions.

SECTION 2. The City Manager of the City of Centerville is hereby authorized to
sign any partnership agreements necessary to participate in the grant projects.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.




PASSED this /¢ day of /ffgff«, 2012

7
7
) /'yr/"/

(oph Y Ve
Ma‘» or of the Citv of Centetville, Ohio

(‘; ;’ // ,‘"\xf

. ATTEST:

/"‘ ~y { )
N{“ G L./i.. L

Cierk of Council ;/

City of Centervil - -Ohio

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Centerville, Ohlo hereby
| certifies the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of Resolution No li-{Z. |, passed
i\ by the Council of the City of Centerville, Ohio onthe /9% day of PHacd 2012,
‘ 7
! . ~ )

L /)17,// (L = franed
Clerk of the Counc

Approved as to form, consistency
[ with existing ordinances, the

.} charter & constitutional provisions
Department of Law

Scott A. Liberman

Municipal Attorney

WGl wet
6"\3:{} ﬂuf‘

Rl

{‘»é?‘!?i vl




RESOLUTION NO. 12-19

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY THE
MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS MEMBER CITIES
TO THE STATE OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR
REGIONAL COOPERATIVE PROJECTS.

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with an
appropriation of $45 million; and

within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million 1s allocated for grants
for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services; and

the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from the
Gov Tech committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit
for grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund; and

the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized MVCC’s
Executive Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the
State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund; and

the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support and
partnership agreements from each participating city’s governing entity;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPALITY OF GERMANTOWN, STATE OF OHIO,
HEREBY RESOLVES THAT:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4:

The Municipal Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami
Valley Communications Council to the State of Ohio Local Government
Innovation Fund for feasibility studies of regional cooperative projects including
building inspection shared services and uniformity of income tax ordinance
provisions.

The Municipal Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements
necessary to participate in the grant projects.

This Municipality of Germantown finds and determines that all formal actions of
this Municipality concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were
taken in an open meeting of the Municipality of Germantown and that all
deliberations of this Municipality and any of its committees that resulted in those
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal
requirements.

This measure shall take effect and be in full force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.



PASSED:  April 2,2012

ATTEST: t} APPROVED:

Kelli R. Sande Theodore E. Landis

Clerk of Council Mayor
First Reading: March 19, 20612
Public Hearing: April 2, 2012

CERTIFICATION

I, Kelli R. Sanders-Novak, Clerk of Council for the Municipality of Germantown, Ohio do
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 12-19 as passed by
Council and approved by the Mayor and that the same has been published as required by Section
2.04 of the Charter of the Municipality of Germantown.

7 N A L

Kelli K. Sanders-Novak

Clerk of Council



CITY OF KETTERING, OHIO
A RESOLUTION

By: #Mr. Scott and Mr. Wanamsker No. g121-12

IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY
THE MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON
BEHALF OF ITS MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL
COOPERATIVE PROJECTS

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with
an appropriation of forty-five million dollars; and

WHEREAS, within the Local Government Fund, nine million dollars is allocated for
grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services; and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Couneil (“MVCC™), based on
recommendations from the Gov Tech committee of City Managers, has identified
potential projects to submit for grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, MVCC by legislative action has authorized MVCC’s Executive Director to
file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the State of Ohio Local
Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support
and partnership agreements from each participating city’s governing entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Council of the City of Kettering, State of
Ohio, that:

Section |. City Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami Valley
Communications Council to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for
feasibility studies of regional cooperative projects, including building inspection shared
services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements
necessary to participate in the grant projects.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law,

Passed by Council this __13th dayof __ March 2012.

(427l

DONALD E. PATTERSON, Mayor

ATTEST: CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL
A . / ’“’?M‘N—Mr"“"

(7 L7 AN %«f\w« -
CONNIE S. GAW, THEODORE A HAMER, 11,
Clerk of Council Law Director

{Requested by: City Manager’s Office}

sAtslagiritinge seolulinnshsV CC-Regional Conpersiive Projacts



RESOLUTION NO. 2799

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY THE MIAMI
VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE
OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL COOPERATIVE

PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with an
appropriation of $45 million, and

WHEREAS,  within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated for grants for local
governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services, and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from the Gov
Tech committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit for grauts
from the Local Government Innovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized MVCC’s Executive
Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the State of Ohio
Local Gavernment Innovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support and partnership
agreements from each participating cities’ governing entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIAMISBURG,
STATE OF OHIO, TWO-THIRDS OF THE ELECTED MEMBERS THERETO CONCURRING,

THAT:

Section 1.
City Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami Valley
Communications Council to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for
feasibility studies of regional cooperative projects including building inspection shared
services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.

Section 2.

The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements necessary to
participate in the grant projects.

Section 3,

This resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.
Qb § By

Passed: March 6, 2012 ttasted
(m % J¥dith E. Barney, Clerk of GBuncil
Approved: \ % ' \ N

Richard C. Church, Jr,, Mayor




RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS

Dayton Lagal Blank, inc., Fem No. 30045

Resolution No. 6770-12 Passed APRIL 12 20 12

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY
THE MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS
MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL COOPERATION PROJECTS

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with an
appropriation of $45 million; and

WHEREAS, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated for
grants for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services; and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from
the Gov Tech committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit for
grants from the Local Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council by legislative action has
authorized the Council’s Executive Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member
cities to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund; and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support and
partnership agreements from each participating cities’ governing entity.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MORAINE, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION 1: That the Moraine City Council hereby supports the grant applications
filed by the Miami Valley Communications Council to the State of
Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies of
regional cooperative projects including building inspection shared
services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.

SECTION 2: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership
agreements necessary to participate in the grant projects.

SECTION 3: That the Clerk is hereby directed to forward a certified copy of this
Resolution to the City Manager and Miami Valley Communications
Council.

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its
passage.

APPRQVED:

w\\A
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Resolution No. 6770-12 Passed APRIL 12 20 12

CERTIFICATE OF THE CLERK

1, Stephen M. French, Clerk of the City of Moraine, Ohio, do hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. §770-12 passed by the
Moraine City Council on the 12th day of April, 2012.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my hand and official seal this 12% day of
April, 2012.

Z
S#éhen M. French, MMC, CRM




A RESOLUTION

BY: MR. CASTLEMAN NO: 1755

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY
THE MIAMI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS
MEMBER CITIES TO THE STATE OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL COOPERATIVE PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Pund with an
appropriation of $45 million, and

WHEREAS, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated for grants for local
governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services, and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from the Gov Tech
committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit for grants from the Local
Government Innovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized MVCC’s Executive
Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the State of Ohio Local Government
Innovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support and partnership
agreements from each participating cities” governing entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAKWOOD,
STATE OF OHIO HEREBY THAT:

SECTION I,

City Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami Valley Communications Council
to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies of regional cooperative
projects including building inspection shared services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.

SECTION II.
The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements necessary to participate in the
grant projects.

SECTION TMI.
This resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAKWOOD this 2nd dayof __ April 2012

e DT

Mayor William D. Duncan

Attest:

(HA oo
Clerk of Council




RESOLUTION NO. R-12-8

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY THE MIAMI
VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS MEMBER CITIES TO THE
STATE OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL
COOPERATIVE PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with an
appropriation of $45 million, and

WHEREAS, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 miilion is allocated for grants for local
governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services, and

WHEREAS, the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from the Gov Tech
committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit for grants from the Local
Government Innovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized MVYCTC’s Executive
Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the State of Ohio Local Government
{nnovation Fund, and

WHEREAS, the grant program requires that an applicant submit vesolutions of support and parinership
agreements from each participating cities” governing entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPALITY OF SPRINGBORO, OHIO HEREBY RESOLVES:

SECTION 1
City Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami Valley Communications Council
to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for feasibil :iy studies of regional aoopea’atwe
projects including building inspection shared services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.
SECTION Ii
The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements necessary (o participate in the
grant projects.
SECTION Hi
This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 5, 2012,

o

Leti A. Martin, Clerk of Council
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“hristine A Thompsen, City Manager and approved by Alan B. Schaeffer,
Law Director.
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Resolution No. 15-2012 Passed March 13 20 1

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS BEING FILED BY THE MIAMI
VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS COUNCIL ON BEHALF OF ITS MEMBER CITIES TO THE
STATE OF OHIO LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR REGIONAL
COOPERATIVE PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has established a Local Government Innovation Fund with an
appropriation of $45 million; and

Whereas, within the Local Government Innovation Fund, $9 million is allocated for grants
for local governments to complete feasibility studies on shared services; and

Whereas, the Miami Valley Communications Council based on recommendations from the
Gov Tech committee of City Managers has identified potential projects to submit for grants
from the Local Government Innovation Fund; and

Whereas, the Communications Council by legislative action has authorized MVCC's
Executive Director to file grant applications on behalf of its member cities to the State of Ohio
Local Government Innovation Fund; and

Whereas, the grant program requires that an applicant submit resolutions of support and
partnership agreements from each participating cities” governing entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF (NAME), STATE OF
OHIO HEREBY THAT:

Section 1. City Council hereby supports the grant applications filed by the Miami Valley
Communications Council to the State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund for
feasibility studies of regional cooperative projects including building inspection shared
services and uniformity of income tax ordinance provisions.

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign any partnership agreements
necessary to participate in the grant projects.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.

PASSED this __13 day Of march 2012 -

kS

Attest: P
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Clerk of Council {7




MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding (“hereinafter referred to as the
"MOU’) is entered into by and between the City of Dayton, Ohio (hereinafter referred to
as the “City) and the Miami Valley Communication Council (hereinafter referred to as
the “MVCC") on behalf of its member cities of Centerville, Germantown, Kettering,
Miamisburg, Moraine, Oakwood, Springboro, and West Carroliton (“hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “member cities”).

WHEREAS, the member cities of the MVCC include Centerville, Germantown,
Kettering, Miamisburg, Moraine, Oakwood, Springboro, and West Carroliton;

WHEREAS, the member cities have, by Resolution #2012-06, authorized the
Executive Director of the MVCC to file grant applications to the State of Ohio Local
Government Innovation Fund for feasibility studies on potential shared services

projects;

WHEREAS, the collaborative partners applying for a Local Government
Innovation Fund grant are the City and the MVCC:

WHEREAS, the City will work with the MVCC on behalf of its member cities, to
obtain a feasibility study to analyze current local income tax ordinances, propose a set
of uniform income tax provisions, estimate the effects on revenues and create a uniform
income tax ordinance to be considered by communities in the Miami Valley area;

NOW THEREFORE, the partners agree to apply for and execute the
requirements of a State of Ohio Local Government Innovation Fund grant.

For(thi City: -/ For the Member Cities and yxzéc
ST o) o] 2
/s g K L eV
7 =7
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i

Timothy H. Riordan John Weithofer
Dayton City Manager MVCC Executive Director

Date: 7/51//{9-9/7\ Date: . j 77 f;f 2_
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